N
r};‘"

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - FEBRUARY 10, 2025
City Council Chambers, City Hall
900 SE Douglas Avenue, Roseburg, Oregon 97470

Public Online Access:
City website at https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos
Facebook Live at www.Facebook.com/CityofRoseburg

Comments on Agenda Items and Audience Participation can be provided in person or electronically via
Zoom. See Audience Participation Information for instructions on how to participate in meetings.

7:00 p.m. Reqular Meeting

1. Call to Order — Mayor Larry Rich

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Tom Michalek Andrea Zielinski Kylee Rummel
Katie Williams Ellen Porter Ruth Smith
Zack Weiss Shelley Briggs Loosley

3. Mayor Reports
A. City Council Resignation — Kylee Rummel, Ward 1, Position 1

B. Economic Development Commission Chair Appointment
4. Commission Reports/Council Ward Reports
5. Audience Participation — In Person or via Zoom/See Information on the Reverse
6. Consent Agenda

A. January 27, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes

7. Public Hearings
A. Ordinance No. 3608 — An Ordinance Amending the Roseburg Urban Growth
Boundary (UGB), Annexing Property, Amending the Comprehensive Plan Map,
Amending the City Zoning Map & Amending the Urban Growth Management
Agreement (UGMA) — File No. CPA-24-002, First Reading

8. Items from Mayor, City Council and City Manager
A. Reading of Executive Session Disclaimers
9. Adjourn

10. Conduct Urban Renewal Agency Board Meeting

11. Executive Session ORS192.660(2)(e) and ORS 192.660(2)(f)
A. Real Property Discussion
B. Consider Records that are Exempt from Disclosure

Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas


Grace Jelks
Stamp


AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION INFORMATION

The Roseburg City Council welcomes and encourages citizen participation at all of our regular meetings, with the
exception of Executive Sessions, which, by state law, are closed to the public. To allow Council to deal with business on
the agenda in a timely fashion, we ask that anyone wishing to address the Council follow these simple guidelines:

Comments may be provided in one of three ways:

e IN PERSON during the meeting in the Council Chambers, Roseburg City Hall, 900 SE Douglas Ave.

0 Each speaker must provide their name, address, phone number and topic on the Audience Participation
Sign-In Sheet.

e VIA EMAIL by sending an email by 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to info@roseburgor.gov.

0 These will be provided to the Council but will not be read out loud during the meeting. Please include
your name, address and phone number within the email.

e VIRTUALLY during the meeting. Contact the City Recorder by phone (541) 492-6866 or email

(info@roseburgor.gov) by 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to get a link to the meeting.

o Each speaker must provide their name, address, phone number and topic in the email. Speakers will
need to log or call in prior to the start of the meeting using the link or phone number provided. When
accessing the meeting through the ZOOM link, click “Join Webinar” to join the meeting as an attendee.
All attendees will be held in a “waiting room” until called on to speak. It is helpful if the speaker can
provide a summary of their comments via email to ensure technology/sound challenges do not limit
Council’'s understanding.

¢ Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the agenda may do so when Council addresses that item.

¢ Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the Consent Agenda, or on a matter not on the evening’s
agenda, may do so under “Audience Participation.”

1. Speakers will be called by the Mayor in the order in which they signed up. The Mayor will generally call in-
person speakers prior to calling speakers participating via Zoom. Each virtual speaker will be transferred
from the “waiting room” into the meeting to provide comments, then moved back to the “waiting room” upon
completion of their comments.

2. Persons addressing the Council in person or virtually must state their name and city of residence for the
record.

TIME LIMITATIONS - A total of 30 minutes shall be allocated for the “Audience Participation” portion of
the meeting. With the exception of public hearings, each speaker will be allotted a total of 6 minutes, unless the
number of speakers will exceed the maximum time. In this case, the Mayor may choose to decrease the allotted
time for each speaker in order to hear from a wider audience. All testimony given shall be new and not have been
previously presented to Council.

Audience Participation is a time for the Mayor and Council to receive input from the public. The Council
may respond to audience comments after “ Audience Participation” has been closed or during “Iltems from
Mayor, Councilors or City Manager” after completion of the Council’s business agenda. The Council
reserves the right to delay any action requested until they are fully informed on the matter.

ORDER AND DECORUM

Councilors and citizens shall maintain order and decorum at Council meetings. Any audience member may be
directed to leave the meeting if they use unreasonably loud, disruptive, or threatening language, make loud or
disruptive noise, engage in violent or distracting action, willfully damage furnishings, refuse to obey the rules of
conduct, or refuse to obey an order of the Mayor or majority of Council. No signs, posters or placards are allowed
in the meeting room.

All speakers and audience members should treat everyone with respect and maintain a welcoming environment.
Please avoid actions that could be distracting such as cheering, booing, or applause. Please turn cell phones to
silent and enter and exit the Council Chambers quietly if the meeting is in progress and take any conversations
outside the Chambers.

The City Council meetings are on Facebook Live and available to view on the City website the next day at:
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos

The full agenda packet is available on the City’s website at:
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-agendas




MAYOR REPORTS A
02/10/2025

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

CITY COUNCIL RESIGNATION — KYLEE RUMMEL, WARD 1, POSITION 1

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 Agenda Section: Mayor Reports
Department: Administration Staff Contact: Amy Nytes, City Recorder
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY

City Councilor Kylee Rummel submitted her resignation on January 24, 2025 from her
position on the City Council. Therefore, the City Council needs to accept the resignation,
declare the position vacant and begin the process to fill the vacancy for City Councilor,
Ward 1, Position 1.

BACKGROUND

A. Council Action History.
No City Council action has been taken.

B. Analysis.

A mayor or councilor vacancy is addressed within The Roseburg Charter Chapter 6.6 and
6.7. The Roseburg Municipal Code Chapter 2.10 outlines the process for filing a
vacancy.

In Summary
Whenever the City Council declares a position on the Council vacant, the Council shall
follow the procedures in Chapter 2.10 when filling the vacancy.

An individual who wishes to be considered to fill a vacancy on the Council shall declare
their candidacy in writing on a form provided at and filed with the City Manager’s office no
later than ten days prior to the Council meeting at which the Council shall consider the
candidates.

The Council shall interview the candidates during a public meeting. To the extent
possible, the Council shall act to fill the vacancy at the same meeting in which it interviews
candidates. Following the interviews, the Council may appoint the successful candidate
or solicit additional candidates for consideration at a later meeting before making an
appointment.

Per the Charter, the appointee’s term of office will run until the expiration of Councilor
Rummel’s term, December 31, 2026.



MAYOR REPORTS A
02/10/2025

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
None.
D. Timing Considerations.

To ensure appropriate representation for the residents of Ward 1, it is recommended the
appointment be made as soon as practical.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
Council may:

1. Accept Councilor Rummel’s resignation and direct Staff to solicit applications from
Ward 1 residents interested in serving in this position. Staff would advertise the
opportunity through the local news media and the City’s website and social media
accounts.

Staff recommends that applications be open for six weeks and accepted until
March 28, 2025. Interviews could then be conducted during the April 14, 2025
Council meeting. Council could direct a longer or shorter application period.

SUGGESTED MOTION

“l MOVE TO ACCEPT KYLEE RUMMEL'’S RESIGNATION WITH REGRETS FROM
THE CITY COUNCIL, TO DECLARE CITY COUNCIL POSITION 1 IN WARD 1 AS
VACANT AND DIRECT STAFF TO SOLICIT APPLICATIONS FROM PERSONS
INTERESTED IN FILLING SUCH VACANCY.”

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment #1 — Email from Kylee Rummel



From: Kylee R. Rummel MAYOR REPORTS A

To: Nicole A. Messenger; Amy Nytes; Larry Rich; Ruth M. Smith - City Council
Subject: City Council Resignation ATTACHMENT NO. 1
Date: Friday, January 24, 2025 5:06:14 PM

Good evening,

Due to personal circumstances, | am resigning from City Council. I have the utmost respect
for City staff and admire the hard and thankless work that you all do. It has been an honor to
know you and | hope that | see you often throughout the community.

Best Regards,

Kylee


mailto:krummel@roseburgor.gov
mailto:nmessenger@roseburgor.gov
mailto:anytes@roseburgor.gov
mailto:lrich@roseburgor.gov
mailto:rmsmith@roseburgor.gov

CONSENT AGENDA A
02/10/2025

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING
January 27, 2025

Mayor Rich called the regular meeting of the Roseburg City Council to order at 7:01 p.m. on
January 27, 2025 in the City Hall Council Chambers, 900 SE Douglas Avenue, Roseburg,

Oregon.

1. Pledge of Allegiance

Councilor Briggs Loosley led the pledge of allegiance.

2. ROLL CALL
Present: Councilors Tom Michalek, Katie Williams, Ellen Porter (appeared via zoom

at 7:24 p.m.), Ruth Smith, Zack Weiss, Shelley Briggs Loosley, and
Andrea Zielinski

Absent: Kylee Rummel

Others: City Manager Nikki Messenger, City Attorney Jim Forrester, Police Chief

Gary Klopfenstein, Fire Chief Tyler Christopherson, Community
Development Director Stu Cowie, Human Resources Director John
VanWinkle, Library Director Kris Wiley, Public Works Director Ryan
Herinckx, Finance Director Ron Harker, City Recorder Amy Nytes,
Management Assistant Grace Jelks, and The News Review — Reporter,
Drew Winkelmaier

3. Mayor Reports

It was noted for the record that the Urban Renewal Agency Board meeting and Council
Executive Session were removed from the agenda and will be scheduled for the next
regular meeting.

A.

Mayor Rich presented the Next Steps Process Regarding Urban Campground.
Discussion ensued.

Council President Smith’s comments and questions included adding water to the
criteria.

Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included preference for criteria
that includes whether there is water, sewer, or a structure available on the
property.

Councilor Briggs Loosley’s comments and questions included clarification of
criteria identified so far.

Mayor Rich clarified that some suggestions may require more in-depth research
for staff to report on later.

Messenger clarified that adding zoning to the criteria for potential property would
be helpful, determining whether there is a water source is possible, and analysis

January 27, 2025 City Council Minutes 1



CONSENT AGENDA A
02/10/2025

to determine resources for getting water service on the property would take a
little more time to compile.

There was a consensus that staff will reach out to the Real Estate Agent that
Council President Smith knows to find out if she is interested in being our Real
Estate Agent of record.

There was a consensus that the minimum information Council needs on a
potential Urban Campground location is: location, lot size, sale price/cost, zoning,
and property pictures to be presented in an Executive Session.

B. Vanwinkle presented Municipal Judge Compensation. Discussion ensued.

Councilor Weiss’ comments and questions included clarification of where the 5%
COLA came from.

VanWinkle clarified that CPI and COLA's for current labor groups were used in
the analysis to determine the percentage and it matches current labor contracts.

Council President Smith moved to increase the Municipal Judge’s monthly salary
by 5% to $6,267, effective retroactive to November 1, 2024. The motion was
seconded by Councilor Zielinski and approved with the following vote:

Councilors Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Smith, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted
yes. No Councilors voted no. The motion passed unanimously.

C. VanWinkle presented City Manager Compensation. Discussion ensued.

Councilor Weiss’ comments and questions included clarification of whether there
were salary comparisons with other cities, percentage of increase for salaries
used in the comparison, whether the same cities are used each year in the
analysis, how long 5% increases have been implemented, feels that 5% is above
the national average, and wants to see more data to understand how it was
calculated.

Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included clarification of the
purpose of adding 5% to the current salary, the salary and increase seem to
exceed any living expenses for the average person or those living off social
security benefits, whether the increase includes the current benefit package, 3%
seems to be more reasonable to cover the cost of inflation, current cost of living
and inflation percentage, and feels that 5% is too high and above what people
working in the mills are getting.

Mayor Rich’s comments and questions included clarification of drawing
comparisons to personal salaries that are not based on the same job description
or title, comparisons to other City Managers with similar populations across the
State, and there is a rule that was put in place before Messenger took over as
City Manager to keep the salary for that position at 10% above the next highest
paid employee.

VanWinkle clarified confirmation that salary comparisons included four other
cities, current City Manager salary is approximately 7% % below average, adding
a 5% COLA would bring Roseburg up to 2.6% below average, the purpose of the
5% increase is for Cost of Living (COLA), benefits are not included in the
calculation, COLA'’s for comparison salaries were not included in the analysis,
some cities used in the comparison have changed due to population fluctuations,

January 27, 2025 City Council Minutes 2



CONSENT AGENDA A
02/10/2025

percentages fluctuate with the current CPI, we try to match our labor contracts,
and the current cost of living ranges from 2.5% to 2.8%.

Council President Smith moved to increase the City Manager’'s monthly salary by
5% to $15,562, effective retroactive to September 1, 2024. The motion was
seconded by Councilor Zielinski and approved with the following vote:

Councilors Briggs Loosley, Smith, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes. Councilors
Michalek and Weiss voted no. The motion passed (4 — 2).

It was noted for the record that Councilor Porter was considered absent during
the vote due to technical difficulties.

D. Nytes presented the City Council Rules and Procedures Review (RMC 2.34).
Discussion ensued.

Council President Smith’s comments and questions included clarification of how
to discuss items.

Mayor Rich clarified that he is available for questions after everyone has had
time to review the material.

Nytes clarified that Councilors could bring items back to a future Council meeting
for review and in-depth discussions.

Messenger clarified that she is available for Councilors if they have questions.
E. Nytes presented Ethics Laws — City Council Policy.

Council President Smith moved to adopt the Amended Ethics Laws City Council
Policy. The motion was seconded by Councilor Zielinski and approved with the
following vote: Councilors Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Smith, Weiss,

Williams, and Zielinski voted yes. No Councilors voted no. The motion passed

unanimously.
4. Commission Reports/Council Ward Reports
A. Councilor Zielinski moved to appoint Alex Alonso and Mandey Elder to the

Budget Committee. The motion was seconded by Councilor Briggs Loosley and
approved with the following vote: Councilors Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter,
Smith, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes. No Councilors voted no. The
motion passed unanimously.

5. Audience Participation
1. Janeal Kohler, Homeless Transition Action Group, business owner, spoke about
homeless issues in the community.
2. Cherri Herrman, resident and business owner, spoke about homeless issues that
have negatively impacted her business.
3. Bernie Woodward, business owner, spoke about homeless issues in the
community.
6. Special Presentations

January 27, 2025 City Council Minutes 3



7.

8.

9.

CONSENT AGENDA A
02/10/2025

Judge Robert B. Johnson gave a presentation on the Drug Court program.
Discussion ensued.

Mayor Rich’s comments and questions included whether there is data on how
graduates are doing at annual intervals (i.e., one or two years after graduation).

Judge Johnson clarified there is data that tracks how graduates are doing, the
recidivism rate drops precipitously the further out they get from graduation, and
the program is inclusive of each person’s needs beyond drug treatment.

Consent Agenda

A.

January 13, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes

Council President Smith moved to approve the consent agenda, as amended.
The motion was seconded by Councilor Zielinski and approved with following
vote: Councilors Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Smith, Weiss, Williams, and
Zielinski voted yes. No Councilors voted no. The motion passed unanimously.

Resolutions

A.

Wiley presented Resolution No. 2025-02 — Repealing and Replacing Resolution
No. 2018-26 Regarding the Roseburg Public Library Meeting Room Policy.
Discussion ensued.

Councilor Briggs Loosley’s comments and questions included the fees are very
reasonable.

Wiley clarified that some fees were last increased in 2022, and it is on the list for
discussion with the City Manager and Finance Director.

Councilor Zielinski moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-02 — Repealing and
Replacing Resolution No. 2018-26 Regarding the Roseburg Public Library
Meeting Room Policy. The motion was seconded by Councilor Briggs Loosley
and approved with following vote: Councilors Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter,
Smith, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes. No Councilors voted no. The
motion passed unanimously.

Department Items

A.

Herinckx presented the Five-Year Pavement Management Engineering Services
Contract. Discussion ensued.

Councilor Weiss’ comments and questions included clarification of the windshield
method and 10% overview, whether Century West offers 100%, and consistent
use of the windshield method.

Council President Smith’s comments and questions included clarification of
whether Century West will subcontract the work locally, Pinnacle’s low proposal,
and which roads are included.

Mayor Rich’s comments and questions included whether Consor North America
and Pinnacle are local.

Councilor Porter’'s comments and questions included discussion by the Public
Works Commission members to open projects to local contractors.

January 27, 2025 City Council Minutes 4



CONSENT AGENDA A
02/10/2025

Herinckx clarified Century West provided the electronic scanning method to
make 100% determination of our roads, the cost of the first Task Order in 2020
was $22,000 for the windshield survey, the preliminary estimate is $41,000 for
the electronic survey, labor wages have increased in the last four years, the
drawback of a more accurate survey is that we will know the true value of our
road conditions, Century West will sub-consult some of the work to i.e.
Engineering, the road survey will be from another sub-consultant that has not
been selected yet, Pinnacle’s proposal did not include the entire road survey or
all of the requirements in the RFQ, the survey does include neighborhood roads,
Consor North America and Pinnacle are local, and the windshield survey has
been used the last two cycles.

Councilor Porter moved to award the Engineering Contract for the Five-Year
Pavement Management Program to Century West Engineering. The motion was
seconded by Councilor Zielinski and approved with following vote: Councilors
Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Smith, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes.
No Councilors voted no. The motion passed unanimously.

10. ltems from Mayor, City Council, and City Manager
. Messenger shared that firefighters deployed to California made it home safely
this past Saturday and Public Works secured the Safe Routes to Schools Grant
at a 0% match.

Council President Smith inquired asked for clarification of the roads and
sidewalks identified in the project.

Herinckx clarified the project starts at the Deer Creek Bridge on Douglas, goes
down to Patterson, and will include ADA compliant ramp installation.

o Mayor Rich, with permission, read Councilor Rummel’'s social media post into the
record, regarding resigning her position on Council. Formal action on her
resignation will be scheduled during the next Council meeting.

. Mayor Rich announced that he has called for an independent investigation in
response to the statements made by Councilor Rummel in her social media post.
Emphasizing his commitment to open and transparent government, he stated
that the public has the right to know what occurred.

11.  Adjourn
Mayor Rich adjourned the regular meeting at 8:13 p.m.

Grace Jelks

Grace Jelks
Management Staff Assistant

January 27, 2025 City Council Minutes 5



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
02/10/2025

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ORDINANCE NO. 3608 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ROSEBURG URBAN
GROWTH BOUNDARY (UGB), ANNEXING PROPERTY, AMENDING THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP, AMENDING THE CITY ZONING MAP & AMENDING
THE URBAN GROWTH MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (UGMA) —

FILE NO. CPA-24-002

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 Agenda Section: Public Hearing
Department: Community Development Staff Contact: Stuart Cowie
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6750

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY

The City of Roseburg Community Development Department has initiated an amendment
to the City’s UGB at Sunshine Park through land use applications with both the City (File
No. CPA-24-002) and Douglas County (File No. P/D 24-081). The amendment, if
approved, includes subsequent land use actions including annexation, comprehensive
plan map amendment, zone change and an amendment of the City/County Urban Growth
Management Agreement (UGMA). This will require approval by both the City and Douglas
County. The City’s decision must be made prior to Douglas County issuing a decision.

The City is proposing to expand the UGB by adjusting the boundary to include 49.92
acres of Sunshine Park property on the eastern side of the park. The UGB expansion
must meet the requirements laid out in Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR 660-024),
Oregon’s Statewide Planning Goals, City of Roseburg Comprehensive Plan, and the
Roseburg/Douglas County Urban Growth Management Agreement. If approved, the
property will be annexed into the City limits and receive a new City Comprehensive Plan
designation of Public Open Space and a new Zoning Map designation of Public Reserve.
A map update to the City/County Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA) will
also occur.

The requested amendments constitute a Legislative Amendment, as indicated by Section
12.10.020 of the Roseburg Municipal Code (RMC). RMC Section 12.10.020(G) requires
that upon receiving a recommendation from the Planning Commission, City Council shall
hold a public hearing to consider the proposal. The public hearing shall follow the
procedures outlined within RMC Section 12.10.020(E).

As required by RMC Section 12.10.020(D), the Roseburg Planning Commission held a
public hearing on December 2, 2024. As Douglas County must also make a decision
regarding this proposal, a joint public hearing with both the City and Douglas County
Planning Commissions was held. Both Planning Commissions made positive

Page | 1



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
02/10/2025

recommendations that the legislative actions be approved. During the joint public hearing
on December 2, the City Planning Commission directed staff to prepare written findings
indicating their recommendation to Council to approve the proposal. They adopted these
findings during their meeting on January 6, 2025. The Findings of Fact and Order
document is included as Attachment 1 to this memo.

BACKGROUND
A. Council Action History.
None.

B. Analysis.

The 49.92 acres of property to be included into the UGB is owned by the City of Roseburg
and is already identified as part of Sunshine Park. The entirety of the park property was
purchased by the City in 1999, but only portions of it are actually located within the UGB
and city limits. Existing park improvements, including development outside the UGB and
city limits, such as the entrance to the park, most of the existing parking lot, a pavilion
and portions of the existing paved trails, were approved through a conditional use permit
(File No. 99-220) authorized by Douglas County on September 30, 1999.

In 2008, City Council adopted the Roseburg Comprehensive Parks Master Plan
recognizing the entirety of Sunshine Park and identifying the possibility of future uses.
The plan indicates the following, “Approximately 40 acres of the 91-acre park site are
currently developed. The remaining acreage should remain more natural, although trails,
viewpoints, and picnic amenities could be added.”

The objective of the UGB expansion, and subsequent annexation, comprehensive plan
map amendment and zone change is for the City to obtain full control of its existing park
property. Control of the property would include land use authority, as well as jurisdiction
over emergency response. Having land use jurisdiction would enable the City to construct
mountain bike/hiking trails on the property in which the City has obtained a $148,790
Recreational Trails Program grant through the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department.

Expansion of the UGB requires specific Oregon Administrative Rules be evaluated. A
land need must be established, and a “Preliminary Study Area” and subsequent “Study
Area” are required in accordance with OAR 660-024-0065 to examine potential expansion
locations.

The Study Area analysis within the City’s accompanying staff report and findings,
provided by 3J Consulting, uses the procedures and methodology defined in OAR 660-
024-0065 and OAR 660-024-0067 to determine the most appropriate areas for expansion
by evaluating Oregon land use Goal 14, locational factors. Please see Chapter 2, “UGB
Expansion,” within the submitted staff report and findings (Attachment 3) for information
concerning the details of the analysis and conclusion.

In addition to addressing the criteria within the required administrative rule, the City also
evaluated the proposed amendments in order to address consistency with applicable

Page | 2



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
02/10/2025

statewide planning goals and Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan policies. See
Chapter 4, “Consistency with Statewide Planning Goals,” and Chapter 5, “Consistency
with the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan Policies,” within the submitted staff
report and findings (Attachment 3).

The City Council has the authority to grant or deny legislative action proposals. The
Roseburg Planning Commission has made a recommendation to Council to approve the
proposed request and has adopted written findings supporting their recommendation
(Attachment 1). Douglas County must also approve the UGB expansion and specific
action items in which the county has jurisdictional control.

The following list breaks down the various land use action items as outlined in the
submitted staff report and findings document within the city’s application.

The list is as follows:

City of Roseburg

1. Amend the UGB by expanding the boundary to include 49.92 acres of park property
located on the east side of Sunshine Park;

2. Annex the property into the City limits;

3. Amend the City Comprehensive Plan Map by applying the city’s Public/Semi-Public
(PSP) plan designation to the 49.92 acres of park property;

4. Amend the City Zoning Map by applying the city’s Public Reserve zoning designation
to the 49.92 acres of park property; and,

5. Amend the Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA) map to reflect the
expanded boundary of the new UGB.

Douglas County

1. Amend the UGB by expanding the boundary to include 49.92 acres of park property
located on the east side of Sunshine Park;

2. Amend the Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA) map to reflect the
expanded boundary of the new UGB.

The legislative request for the UGB expansion and subsequent land use actions was
reviewed by the City based on the applicable criteria as follows:

RMC Section 12.10.020 — “Legislative Action Procedures”

ORS 222 — “Boundary Changes, Annexations, Withdrawals”

OAR 660-024 — “Urban Growth Boundaries”

Oregon Statewide Planning Goals

Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan Policies
Roseburg/Douglas County Urban Growth Management Agreement

Ultimately, City Council’s decision whether to approve or deny the proposed request must
be centered upon whether or not these criteria have been satisfied.

Page | 3



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
02/10/2025

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.

The City has spent a tremendous amount of staff time and funding over the last five years
in order to obtain land use approval to develop park amenities on the remaining 49.92
acres of Sunshine Park outside the UGB and city limits. An initial conditional use permit
(CUP) was submitted to Douglas County in 2020 to build a trail system. In 2021, the
application was withdrawn. An additional CUP was submitted in 2022. That application
was conditionally approved, and subsequently appealed to the Douglas County Board of
Commissioners, who denied the CUP. The denial was appealed to Oregon’s Land Use
Board of Appeals (LUBA), who remanded the decision back to the county. A revised
decision, denying the CUP application on remand from LUBA was issued by the County
Commissioners at the beginning of 2024. In the public hearing with the County Board of
Commissioners and other on-the-record meetings, Douglas County Commissioners
mentioned that the City should annex the land into the City and follow its own procedures
for future development action of park amenities. This UGB expansion application is the
City’s attempt to do so.

Throughout this process, attorneys, third-party land use consultants, and surveyors have
been hired in order to help the City obtain land use authorization over its own park
property. Immediate action involving a decision concerning the UGB expansion does not
trigger financial impacts to the City. However, approving the UGB expansion will validate
years of previous staff work, and no longer require the City to hire land use consultants
or attorneys to assist in obtaining land use approval for its own park. In addition, approval
of the UGB expansion will enable the City to utilize the $148,790 Recreational Trails
Program grant the City was awarded in 2021.

D. Timing Considerations.

The UGB expansion proposal is a legislative action initiated by the City of Roseburg.
Legislative action proposals are not subject to the time frames necessary to issue a
decision as in most land use applications. As a result, Council is under no legal time frame
in which a decision must be rendered. However, please note that the Oregon Parks and
Recreation Department has been very patient in holding the $148,790 trails grant the City
was awarded while we have been trying to obtain land use approval. This funding was
authorized in 2021. The state can’t hold onto the funding for us indefinitely.

COUNCIL OPTIONS

e Adopt the Planning Commission’s Findings of Fact and Order for File No. CPA-24-
002 followed by first reading of Ordinance 3608 (Attachment 2); or

e Modify the proposed action or continue the matter for further consideration; or

e Decline to proceed with the proposed action.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Council adopt the Planning Commission’s Findings of Fact and
Order for File No. CPA-24-002 and proceed with the first reading of Ordinance 3608.

Page | 4



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
02/10/2025

SUGGESTED MOTION

“l MOVE TO ADOPT THE FINDINGS OF FACT AND ORDER APPROVED BY THE
PLANNING COMMISSION AUTHORIZING THE FOLLOWING LAND USE ACTIONS,
AS REFERENCED IN FILE NO. CPA-24-002:

1.

AMEND THE UGB BY EXPANDING THE BOUNDARY TO INCLUDE 49.92 ACRES
OF PARK PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF SUNSHINE PARK;

2. ANNEX THE PROPERTY INTO THE CITY LIMITS;
3.

AMEND THE CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP BY APPLYING THE CITY’S
PUBLIC/SEMI-PUBLIC (PSP) PLAN DESIGNATION TO THE 49.92 ACRES OF
PARK PROPERTY;

AMEND THE CITY ZONING MAP BY APPLYING THE CITY’S PUBLIC RESERVE
ZONING DESIGNATION TO THE 49.92 ACRES OF PARK PROPERTY; AND,
AMEND THE URBAN GROWTH MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (UGMA) MAP TO
REFLECT THE EXPANDED BOUNDARY OF THE NEW UGB.”

If motion passes it would be appropriate to request first reading of Ordinance No. 3608.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment No. 1 — January 6, 2025, Roseburg Planning Commission Findings of Fact
and Order File No. CPA-24-002

Attachment No. 2 — Ordinance No. 3608

Attachment No. 3 - November 18, 2024, Sunshine Park Urban Growth Boundary
Expansion Staff Report and Findings (AKA Application)

Page | 5



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

In the matter of legislative action ) Comprehensive Plan Amendment:
by the City of Roseburg ) CPA-24-002

BEFORE THE ROSEBURG PLANNING COMMISSION
FINDINGS OF FACT AND ORDER
I. NATURE OF APPLICATION

The City has initiated a legislative amendment to expand its Urban Growth Boundary (UGB)
to include 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park property on the eastern side of the existing park.
The entirety of Sunshine Park was purchased by the City in 1999, but only portions of it are
actually located within the UGB and city limits. Existing park improvements including
development outside the UGB and city limits, such as the entrance to the park, most of the
existing parking lot, a pavilion and portions of the existing paved trails were approved
through a conditional use permit (File No. 99-220) authorized by Douglas County on
September 30, 1999.

The proposed UGB expansion includes subsequent land use actions including annexation,
comprehensive plan map amendment, zone change and an amendment to the City/County
Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA). These land use actions are being
processed concurrently with the UGB expansion request. Approval must be obtained by both
the Roseburg City Council and the Douglas County Board of Commissioners for specific
land use action items over which their jurisdiction has control.

The objective of the UGB expansion and subsequent annexation is for the City to obtain full
control of its existing park property. Control of the property would include land use authority,
as well as complete jurisdiction over emergency response. Having land use jurisdiction
would enable the City to construct mountain bike/hiking trails on the property in which the
City has obtained a $148,790 Recreational Trails Program grant through the Oregon Parks
and Recreation Dept. The City’'s 2008, Roseburg Comprehensive Parks Master Plan
recognizes the entirety of Sunshine Park and identifies the 50 acres of undeveloped park
property proposed for inclusion within the City’'s UGB, to be used for passive recreational
opportunities such as trails, viewpoints, and picnic amenities.

Il. PUBLIC HEARING

A combined public hearing was held on the application before both the Roseburg Planning
Commission and the Douglas County Planning Commission on December 2, 2024. At that
hearing the Roseburg Planning Commission reviewed Land Use File CPA-24-002 and it was
made part of the record. The Planning Commissions heard testimony from the public
concerning the application. The Planning Commissions collectively made a motion to close
the public hearing at the conclusion of their December 2, 2024 meeting.



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

lll. FINDINGS OF FACT

EXISTING CONDITIONS

1.

The Planning Commission takes official notice of the Roseburg Urban Area
Comprehensive Plan adopted by City Council Ordinance No. 2980 on December
9, 1996 and of the Roseburg Land Use and Development Regulations No. 2363,
as originally adopted July 1, 1984, and re-adopted in Ordinance No. 3497 on May
1, 2018, as both may have been amended from time-to-time.

Notice of the public hearing was given by publication in The News Review, a
newspaper of general circulation, at least 10 days prior to the hearing.

The objective of the UGB expansion, and subsequent annexation, comprehensive
plan map amendment and zone change is in order for the City to obtain full control
of its existing park property. Control of the property would include land use
authority, as well as complete jurisdiction over emergency response. It would have
been beneficial for the City to have completed this process when the park property
was purchased in 1999, but this never occurred and the City is now trying to
achieve this action.

The Roseburg Comprehensive Parks Master Plan (2018), includes several goals
designed to help guide decision making about the future of Roseburg's park
system that help to justify the need for a UGB expansion and ultimately control of
all of Sunshine Park:

A. Maximize Local Resources for Parks and Recreation: The City of Roseburg
will make the most of existing community investments to maintain and enhance
park and recreation opportunities.

B. Enhance Individual and Community Wellness: Park and recreation projects
should create opportunities for passive recreation.

C. Promote Enjoyment of Roseburg’s Natural Character: The City of Roseburg
will strive to provide publicly accessible natural areas.

D. Provide Diverse Recreation Opportunities: The City of Roseburg will provide a
variety of parks, recreation facilities, and natural areas that engage a broad
cross section of the community.

PROPOSAL
The proposal consists of the following land use actions:

1.

Amend the UGB by expanding the boundary to include 49.92 acres of park
property located on the east side of Sunshine Park;

2. Annex the property into the City limits;
3.

Amend the City Comprehensive Plan Map by applying the city’s Public/Semi-
Public (PSP) plan designation to the 49.92 acres of park property;

. Amend the City Zoning Map by applying the city’'s Public Reserve zoning

designation to the 49.92 acres of park property; and,



C

PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

5. Amend the Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA) maps to reflect the
expanded boundary of the new UGB.

BLI COMMEN
Prior to the initial public hearing on December 2, 2024, two comment letters were
provided to the Planning Commissioners in support of the application. A hard copy of
these letters were provided to the Planning Commissioners at the beginning of the
hearing.

At the joint City/County Planning Commission hearing, public testimony included four
people testifying in opposition, and two people speaking in support of the application.
No additional letters or evidence was submitted into the record during the hearing
itself.

Issues raised in opposition to the proposal during the public hearing on December 2,
2024 can be generally described as listed below. Below each bullet point item in italics
is a finding indicating how the concern has been addressed either within the
application material or through public testimony during the course of the hearing.

Fire Danger.

Three of the four individuals who spoke in opposition to the application
indicated fire danger as a concern regarding the application and a reason for
not approving the requested UGB expansion. Testimony was provided
concerning fire risks citing findings from the Douglas County Board of County
Commissioners dated January 31, 2024, denying a previous Conditional Use
permit application, (PD File No. 22-078).

The County Commissioners findings, dated January 31, 2024, specifically
finding #3, cited by Mr. Matthew Henry during the course of the public hearing
addresses fire danger as it pertains to criteria contained in Douglas County
Land Use Development Ordinance (LUDO) Section 3.39.050(1), as listed
within the finding itself. This code criterion applies to Conditional Use Review.
The criterion requires that the proposed use is or may be made compatible
with existing adjacent permitted uses and other uses permitted in the
underlying zone. The City is not applying to the County for a Conditional Use
permit. The City is requesting the County authorize a UGB expansion request.
As such, criterion contained within LUDO Section 3.39.050(1), addressing the
compatibility of a future use do not apply, as the City is not requesting the
County to approve any type of proposed park use. Rather, the City is
requesting the County to authorize expansion of the UGB around the
remaining portion of Sunshine Park outside the existing UGB, in an effort to
annex the property and gain jurisdictional control of its own park.

The City recognizes the concems neighboring property owners have
expressed involving fire danger at Sunshine Park. If the UGB expansion is
approved, the City will annex the property into the city limits giving the
Roseburg Fire Department complete jurisdiction over the entirety of the park

3



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

property. Currently, the portions of the park property outside the UGB are
under the jurisdiction of the Douglas Forest Protective Agency (DFPA).The
DFPA is responsible for wildfire prevention, detection, and suppression
activities on 1.6 million acres of land within the Douglas District. While the
developed portions of Sunshine Park, inside city limits and UGB, are classified
‘exempt” under the Douglas County Forestland Classification and are not
within DFPA’s wildfire protection jurisdiction, the undeveloped portion of the
property east of the baseball fields, outside the UGB, are classified
“Forestland” (grazing) and therefore within DFPA’s wildfire protection
Jurisdiction.

Intergovernmental agreements between DFPA and Roseburg Fire Department
enable Roseburg Fire to respond in the event of a fire, but ultimately the DFPA
has jurisdiction over the area. DFPA does not have staffed stations. Response
times for the DFPA to Sunshine Park are unknown, and are based upon the
availability of trucks within the area and available staff. In contrast, Roseburg
Fire Department has a staffed station within approximately 3.5 miles of
Sunshine Park and can respond to the park property within five minutes of a
call.

In addition, being located within the city limits will give Roseburg Fire
Department the ability to apply fire mitigation programs and efforts typical of
urban settings rather than rural settings. The City owns and operates Boyer
Reservoir, a 500,000 gallon water reservoir located 1,600 feet to the south of
Sunshine Park that will provide fire protection to the property.

Although not required as part of this application. Letters included in the record
from the Roseburg Fire Chief, Tyler Christopherson, as well as Josh Waechter,
Division Chief and Fire Marshal of Central Douglas Fire & Rescue indicate that
future uses such as a trail system on the park property outside the UGB will
benefit the area in the following ways:

1. Availability of adequate access to the proposed area for fire suppression
efforts and faster response time in the unfortunate event of a fire.

2. The 3- to 4- foot wide trails will act as firebreaks, potentially slowing down
the advancement of fire if it occurs.

3. Citizens’ use of the trail system will allow for quick and early detection of
possible fires.

The Parks Division has also recently purchased a new lawnmower capable of
cutting grass and handling slopes that exist on the park property outside the
UGB. Itis anticipated that this new mower will be used to cut grass immediately
along the edge of the City park property, maintaining a firebreak between the
City property and adjacent neighboring properties. The Parks Master Plan
identifies one of its goals as promoting enjoyment of Roseburg’s natural
character by providing access to natural areas. Mowing the entirety of the 50
acres of natural area proposed to be included within the UGB is unrealistic and
would defeat the purpose of maintaining natural area for citizens to enjoy.

4



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

However, the use of the new mower to create a firebreak between property
lines to the north and east of the park property will help provide additional
mitigation concerning fire danger.

A wetland exists on the southern portion of the property, at the base of the
hillside, and serves as a natural firebreak between the park property and
Nordic Veneer. This wetland will not be mowed and will be kept as natural area
serving to provide a firebreak and buffer area from Nordic Veneer with future
park uses.

The Planning Commission recognizes that the City has tried to mitigate fire
concemns by consulting with fire experts concerning future uses on the park
property and has even purchased equipment to help mitigate fire risks to
adjacent properties. However ultimately, the Planning Commission finds that
it is not the responsibility of the city to address or eliminate all possible fire
risks as part of the UGB expansion application. The request before the
Commission concerns whether or not the city has satisfied the criteria
necessary for a UGB expansion, annexation, comprehensive map amendment
and zone change.

Negative impacts to neighboring farming activity, involving a sheep
operation immediately east of the park property at 388 Temple Brown Rd.
Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660-024 contains requirements of Oregon
Statewide Goal 14 (Urbanization) regarding a local government amendment
to its UGB. The rules in this division interpret the use of Goal 14.

When determining alternative UGB expansion locations, Goal 14 locational
factors are applied in order to determine the most accommodating and cost
effective site, while creating the fewest conflicts between neighboring land
uses, and causing the fewest negative environmental, economic, social and
energy consequences. Goal 14, establishes four boundary locational factors
in order to accomplish this objective. The fourth factor involves, compatibility
of the proposed use with nearby agricultural activities occurring on farmland
outside the UGB.

Mr. Dan Dawson, who resides at 388 Temple Brown Rd. provided testimony
raising concerns about the effects the UGB expansion, specifically the use of
a future trail system may have on his adjacent sheep operation, in which he
stated he manages 1,250 ewes. Mr. Dawson owns approximately 115 acres
of FG zoned property, in which only a portion, 885 linear feet or 8 percent of
his total property line, is adjacent to Sunshine Park. The remaining
approximately 9,945 linear feet of Mr. Dawson’s property line abuts other farm
and forest zoned property, portions of which are designated as marginal. His
residence (388 Temple Brown Rd) identified as Tax ID: R134311 or Parcel 3
on Partition Plat 2008-65, is 329 ft. in length and is located in the center of the
885 feet shared property line between his parcel and Sunshine Park. His home
site is located immediately adjacent to the Sunshine Park property.



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Mr. Dawson’s home was built in 2009. His 115 acres was partitioned in 2008
under Article 44 (Division of Nonresource Lands In Designated Resource
Areas) of the Douglas County Land Use Development Ordinance. In order to
qualify for approval of the partition and home site, Mr. Dawson was required
to indicate his property would not be used in conjunction with agricultural
purposes as required in Section 3.44.000 of the LUDO. Approval of the
patrtition indicates that Parcel 3, in which his existing residence is now located,
would not be used in conjunction with agricultural purposes. As a result, this
property is now assessed for residential purposes and has been disqualified
from farm-use special tax assessment.

In addition, the dwelling approval for his home at 388 Temple Brown Rd. was
authorized as a non-farm dwelling through the application of Article 43
(Approval of Nonresource Dwellings in FG, FC or FF Zones). Section 3.43.000
of the LUDO indicates, “This procedure applies to building or placement
permits for dwellings not in conjunction with farm use.”

Mr. Dawson’s land use consultant, in which he hired to complete his non-farm
division and non-farm dwelling application, effectively argued in 2006 that his
property immediately adjacent to Sunshine Park was not involved in
agricultural purposes, providing him with the ability to obtain approval from the
County to partition his property and obtain approval for his non-farm dwelling.
Douglas County Planning Department Case File 2006-017, authorizing Mr.
Dawson’s request to partition his property and build his home, specifically
identified the current location of the parcel and home site immediately adjacent
to Sunshine Park, in order to assert that the property qualified for a non-farm
division and non-farm dwelling because it was adjacent to a park and therefore
incompatible with farming activities.

Mr. Dawson is now arguing the exact opposite of which enabled him to create
his parcel and develop his existing home site in order to deny the City from
obtaining jurisdictional control over its own park.

The authorization of partition plat 2008-65 and Douglas County case file 2006-
017 demonstrates that this area was not utilized for farming activity, nor should
it be used for farming activity, as a non-farm dwelling was approved at this
location. Coincidentally, during the same time Mr. Dawson was finalizing the
division of his non-resource land and constructing his non-farm dwelling in
2008, the City was completing and adopting its Parks Master Plan identifying
the undeveloped portions of Sunshine Park for the use of future passive park
improvements.

Based on his testimony, Mr. Dawson has clearly indicated he uses his property
for farming purposes, a violation of his non-farm division and dwelling approval
authorized in 2006. The UGB expansion at this location is clearly compatible
with any agricultural use that is immediately adjacent to the property, because
based upon existing land use law and current development patterns there

6



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

should be little to no farming activity within the area. Property immediately to
the north is constructed with rural residential homes, property to the east is
adjacent to two rural home sites, one of which is a non-farm dwelling, and
property to the south is zoned industrial for Nordic Veneer.

The Planning Commission finds that the UGB expansion is compatible with
nearby farm uses on designated farmland outside the UGB.

Concerns with the required Study Area.
Residential impacts to Site A (Sunshine Park) are greater than that of Site B,
because there are no residential properties adjacent to Site B.

OAR 660-024-0065 requires the establishment of a study area to evaluate land
for inclusion into the UGB. The land need necessary for the UGB expansion
of a park is 52.3 acres. The total acreage in the finalized study area is 109.1
acres. OAR 660-024-0065(5) requires that the Study Area contain at least
twice the amount of land needed for the deficiency determined in OAR 660-
024-0050(4). The amount of land in the study area meets this threshold.

Figures 2 and 3 within the application, illustrates the study area on Site A and
Site B, which includes 109.1 acres. The study area consists only of land that
is of an appropriate size for a city park, has areas of slope that are 10% or
greater, is adjacent to the existing UGB and city limits, is zoned Farm Grazing
(FG), and is not considered predominantly high-value farmland.

Testimony provided during the course of the hearing indicated that there are
no residential properties within the area of Site B and therefore residential
impacts are greater within the area of Site A (Sunshine Park). First, this
Statement is inaccurate. There are residential properties adjacent to Site B. In
fact, there are more properties with residential homes immediately adjacent to
Site B than there are Site A. Secondly, the statement fails to address what
criteria residential impacts would effect and why the application should be
denied based on this assertion.

The entirety of the eastern boundary of Site B is adjacent to properties inside
the city limits zoned both single-family residential and multi-family residential.
Fifteen residential homes adjacent to NW Avery St. and NW Loma Vista Dr.
share a common boundary with Site B. Two a nal home sites, one located
off of Dusty Ln. and the other off of Troost St., also share a common boundary
with Site B.

Unlike the residences adjacent to Site A, the residences immediately east of
Site B have an urban residential zoning designation, which has resulted in a
much more dense urban pattern of development. Lots adjacent fo the eastern
boundary line of Site B have an average lot size of 10,672 square feel,
whereas properties along the northern edge of Site A, are considerably larger
consisting of 5 acre lots.



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Mrs. Elizabeth Henry, who provided testimony concerning this issue, lives at
325 Natures Ln. Her property, as well as properties adjacent to the northem
boundary of Sunshine Park have a county zoning designation of Agriculture
and Woodlot (AW). A total of five properties share the entirety of the northern
boundary with Site A, two-thirds less than the number of residential lots with
homes adjacent to Site B. Although the AW zone allows for a single-family
residential use, the purpose of the AW zone, as identified in Douglas County
LUDO Section 3.6.000, is to preserve rural quality and conserve lands of
marginal agricultural and timber production capability. This is why these
properties are 5 acres in size. Contrast that purpose, with the purpose of the
city’s residential district found in RMC Section 12.04.030(A). This code states,
residential zones are primarily intended to create, maintain and promote a
variety of housing opportunities and neighborhoods. Although some homes
exist around Site A, no zoning districts are located within the area specifically
designated for the purpose of residential uses like Site B. A nally, more
properties with existing residential homes are adjacent to Site B than there are
with Site A.

The Planning Commission finds that the study area itself, plus the study area
analysis satisfies the criteria required in OAR 660-024-0065 and that the
statement provided in Mrs. Henry'’s testimony is unfounded.

Privacy of neighboring property owners.

Public testimony was provided during the course of the hearing concerning the
desire for privacy to adjacent property owners. Concerns about the public
being able to walk next to the fenced property line were raised.

This concern does not address any of the applicable standards required for a
UGB expansion, annexation, comprehensive plan map amendment or zone
change. The city has owned the Sunshine Park property for 25 years.
Neighboring property owners/renters immediately adjacent to the park have
chosen to live next to public property designated as a park. The Planning
Commission finds that regardless of the UGB expansion application, the public
has the right to use the park property, whether it is under the county’s
jurisdiction or city’s jurisdiction. The city has worked to repair and construct
new fence line along the perimeter of Sunshine Park in an effort to further
delineate property lines and identify park property. Regardless of whether
further development of the property occurs or not, the public has the ability to
walk the perimeter of the property along the fence line. The public has been
able to do this over the last 25 years, can do this now, and will continue to be
able to do so in the future.

Closure of the gate at Sunshine Park.

Two of the four individuals that spoke in opposition to the application
expressed concerns about closure of the existing gate at Sunshine Park from
dusk to dawn during hours in which the park is closed.



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

This concern has to do with existing park operational policies and procedures
and does not address any applicable standards required as part of the UGB
expansion application or subsequent annexation, comprehensive plan map
amendment or zone change. The Planning Commission advises individuals
with this concern to address the issue with the city Parks and Recreation
Commission.

Issues raised in support of the proposal before and during the initial public hearing
on December 2, 2024 can be generally described as follows:

The UGB expansion and future passive recreational improvements are
compatible with nearby farming uses.

OAR 660-024 requires compatibility of the UGB expansion with nearby
agricultural activities occurring on farmland outside the UGB.

Mr. Evan Kruse, the remaining farm operator of Kruse Farms, a prominent
farming operation in the Roseburg area provided testimony during the hearing
in favor of the application. Mr. Kruse's testimony provided another farmers
perspective, in relation to Mr. Dawson’s testimony concerning the matter. Mr.
Kruse indicated that the proposed UGB expansion and future trail network
would have a low impact on nearby farming activity and would not prohibit
future agricultural uses. Mr. Kruse indicated that the Oregon Farm Bureau lists
passive recreational amenities like a trail system as a desirable park type of
use when adjacent to agricultural producers. Mr. Kruse asserts that as a
farmer, one must regularly consider how best to use their land in order to
protect their crop. Protecting ones crops is the responsibility of the farmer. If a
farmer grows a crop that needs buffer space in order to safely be grown, the
farmer can’t demand or expect the neighboring property owner to provide that
buffer space. If a particular type of livestock is sensitive to outside activity, it
should be the responsibility of the grower to provide protection, not adjacent
landowners.

Support for the UGB expansion so the City can better control Sunshine
Park.

Two letters of support for the UGB expansion were submitted into the record.
One letter from the Thrive Umpqua organization and the other from the
Umpqua Velo Club. These letters in conjunction with public testimony from two
other individuals during the hearing indicated support for the application and
ultimately the need for the City to have jurisdictional control over its own park.

PROCEDURAL

Comprehensive Plan Amendments are required to satisfy approval criteria contained
within Roseburg Municipal Code (RMC) Section 12.10.020 — Legislative action
procedures.



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

REVIEW CRITER

Pursuant to RMC 12.10.020(F)(2) the proposed legislative amendment must be
analyzed for consistency with any substantive criteria deemed to apply, including
policies within the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan, Oregon Statewide
Planning Goals, and other provisions of the Roseburg Municipal Code.

As required by RMC 12.10.020(F)(2) the legislative request for the UGB Exchange
and subsequent land use actions was reviewed by the City based on the applicable
criteria as follows:

RMC Section 12.10.020 — “Legislative Action Procedures”
ORS 222 - “Boundary Changes, Annexations, Withdrawals”
e OAR 660-024 — “Urban Growth Boundaries”
Oregon Statewide Planning Goals
Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan Policies
Roseburg/Douglas County Urban Growth Management Agreement

Analysis and subsequent findings demonstrating consistency with the above listed
criteria is provided in the Sunshine Park Urban Growth Boundary Expansion: Staff
Report and Findings document dated November 18, 2024, attached as Exhibit A.
Findings located within this document, as well as testimony provided during the
course of the public hearing by City staff, including Sam Huck, 3J Land Use
Consultant, speaking on behalf of the application, sufficiently address the applicable
criteria listed above and demonstrate that the proposal is consistent with these
requirements and satisfies all necessary standards.

IV. CONCLUSION

Based on the findings provided within the November 18, 2024 Sunshine Park Urban
Growth Boundary Expansion: Staff Report and Findings document, the Planning
Commission concludes that the legislative amendment meets the criteria for approval in
RMC Section 12.10.020.

V. ORDER

Based on the Findings and Conclusions provided within the November 18, 2024
Sunshine Park Urban Growth Boundary Expansion: Staff Report and Findings document,
the Planning Commission recommends APPROVAL of the legislative amendments as
listed below to City Council.

1.
2.
3. Amend the City Comprehensive Plan Map by applying the city’s Public/Semi-Public

Amend the UGB by expanding the boundary to include 49.92 acres of park property
located on the east side of Sunshine Park;
Annex the property into the City limits;

(PSP) plan designation to the 49.92 acres of park property;
Amend the City Zoning Map by applying the city’s Public Reserve zoning designation
to the 49.92 acres of park property; and,

10



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

5. Amend the Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA) maps to reflect the
expanded boundary of the new UGB.

e
/- b-25
ime Yraguen, n Commission Chair Date

munity Development Director

Planning Commission Members:
Jaime Yraguen (Chair)

Shelby Osborn

Jarrett Nielsen

Matthew Brady

Emily Brandt

Matthew Keller

Exhibit A — November 18, 2024 Sunshine Park Urban Growth Boundary Expansion: Staff
Report and Findings (aka Application)

11



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

ORDINANCE NO. 3608
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING THE EXPANSION OF THE ROSEBURG URBAN GROWTH
BOUNDARY AT SUNSHINE PARK; ANNEXATION OF REAL PROPERTY AT SUNSHINE
PARK; AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP; AMENDMENT TO THE
ZONING MAP; AMENDMENT TO THE URBAN GROWTH MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT;
AND DIRECTING THE FILING OF INSTRUMENTS OF RECORD WITH THE SECRETARY OF
STATE, THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE AND THE DOUGLAS COUNTY ASSESSOR.

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg initiated an amendment to the Roseburg Urban Growth
Boundary (UGB) to include 49.92 acres of real property inside the UGB, owned by the City of
Roseburg and identified as Sunshine Park described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg initiated the annexation of 49.92 acres of real property, owned
by the City of Roseburg and identified as Sunshine Park, described and mapped in Exhibit A,
attached hereto and incorporated herein; and,

WHEREAS, the annexation of real property at Sunshine Park, described in Exhibit A, necessitates
the withdrawal of portions of the park property located within the boundaries of Douglas County
Fire District No. 2 as the property will now be served by the City of Roseburg Fire Department;
and,

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg initiated an amendment to the Roseburg Comprehensive Plan
Map to designate 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park property described in Exhibit A, attached hereto
and incorporated herein, with a Public/Semi-Public (PSP) Comprehensive Plan designation; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg initiated an amendment to the Roseburg Zoning Map to
designate 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park property described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein, with a Public Reserve (PR) Zoning designation; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg initiated a map amendment to the City of Roseburg/Douglas
County Urban Growth Management Agreement (UGMA) to reflect the UGB expansion, as
provided in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein; and,

WHEREAS, the Roseburg Municipal Code Section 12.10.020 establishes the procedures for
legislative amendments of the Roseburg Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Map; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg submitted an application to the City Community Development
Department, the Douglas County Planning Department and the Oregon Department of Land
Conservation and Development addressing applicable code in ORS 222 — “Boundary Changes,
Annexations, Withdrawals,” OAR 660-024 — “Urban Growth Boundaries,” Oregon Statewide
Planning Goals, Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan Policies, and Roseburg/Douglas
County UGMA,; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg and Douglas County Planning Commissions held a joint public
hearing after due and timely notice to consider the proposal and the City Planning Commission
decided to recommend City Council approve the proposed amendments and the County Planning

Ordinance No. 3608 Page 1 of 7



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Commission decided to recommend the Board of County Commissioners co-adopt the proposed
amendments; and,

WHEREAS, after reviewing the recommendation of the City Planning Commission, City Council
conducted a public hearing and determined that the proposal conforms to the criteria as required
in Roseburg Municipal Code Section 12.10.020 and approves the requested amendments; and

WHEREAS, before these land use actions can become effective by the City Council, the Douglas
County Board of Commissioners must approve a similar ordinance authorizing the expansion of
the UGB to include the 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park as described in Exhibit A, attached hereto
and incorporated herein, and amend maps within the UGMA to reflect the UGB expansion as
provided in Exhibit B.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF ROSEBURG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby adopts the Planning Commission’s Findings of Fact and
Order dated January 6, 2025, as their own Findings of Fact and Order indicating that the legislative
amendments meet the criteria identified in RMC Section 12.10.020 and approve the proposed
request.

SECTION 2. The 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park property legally described in Exhibit A is hereby
added to the City of Roseburg UGB.

SECTION 3. The 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park property described and mapped in Exhibit A is
hereby annexed to the City of Roseburg.

SECTION 4. Sunshine Park property is hereby withdrawn from the boundaries of Douglas County
Fire District No. 2.

SECTION 5. The City of Roseburg Comprehensive Plan Map is hereby amended to designate
the 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park property included in the new UGB, described in Exhibit A, with
a Public/Semi-Public (PSP) Comprehensive Plan designation.

SECTION 6. The City of Roseburg Zoning Map is hereby amended to designate the 49.92 acres
of Sunshine Park property, described in Exhibit A, with a Public Reserve (PR) zoning designation.

SECTION 7. Amendment to the map within the City of Roseburg/Douglas County UGMA showing
the expansion of the UGB at Sunshine Park as provided in Exhibit B are hereby approved by the
City of Roseburg.

SECTION 8. Upon the ordinance becoming effective, the City Recorder shall file a copy of the
ordinance identifying the annexation of the Sunshine Park property described in Exhibit A with the
Secretary of State as required by ORS 222.177.

SECTION 9. Upon the ordinance becoming effective, the City Recorder shall submit the legal
description and map of the Sunshine Park property being annexed into the City limits (attached
hereto as Exhibit A) to the Douglas County Assessor and the Oregon Department of Revenue as
required by ORS 308.225.

Ordinance No. 3608 Page 2 of 7



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

SECTION 10. Within 10 days from the effective date of the ordinance, the City Recorder shall
submit to the Douglas County Clerk, County Assessor and Oregon Department of Revenue the
legal description and map of the new annexed Sunshine Park property (attached hereto as Exhibit
A) in accordance with ORS 222.010.

SECTION 11. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption of a similar ordinance by the
Douglas County Board of Commissioners authorizing the expansion of the UGB to include the
49.92 acres of Sunshine Park as provided in Exhibit A and amend maps within the UGMA to
reflect the UGB expansion as provided in Exhibit B.

ADOPTED BY THE ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL THIS DAY OF , 20__

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS DAY OF , 20

LARRY RICH, MAYOR
ATTEST:

AMY NYTES, CITY RECORDER

EXHIBITS
Exhibit A — Sunshine Park Legal Description
Exhibit B — UGMA Map Update

Ordinance No. 3608 Page 3 of 7



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

EXHIBIT A

A Parcel of Land situated in Section 15, Township 27 South, Range 5 West of the Willamette
Meridian, Douglas County, Oregon and being a portion of Parcels 1 and 2 of Partition Plat 1998-
0036 and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point lying on the East Right-of-Way of Sunshine Road, Douglas County Road
Number 58 and being situated on the North boundary of said Partition Plat also being the South
boundary of Sunshine Acres, a unrecorded subdivision filed as RM1-66 in the Official Survey
Records of Douglas County, Oregon from which the one-quarter corner common to Sections 14
and 15, Township 27 South, Range 5 West of the Willamette Meridian, Douglas County, Oregon
bears South 88°55'02” East 1653.57 feet, South 89°01'41” East 1923.50 feet and South 00°25’°34”
East 303.25 feet; thence along said South boundary of Sunshine Acres and North boundary of
said Partition Plat South 88°55’02” East 1653.57 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with plastic cap
inscribed “IE ENG.” situated at the Northeast corner of Parcel 1 of said Partition Plat; thence
South 89°01'41” East 1923.50 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod situated at the Northeast corner of Parcel
2 of said Partition Plat and being the Southeast corner of said Sunshine Acres; thence leaving
said boundary and along the East boundary of said Parcel 2 South 00°25'34” East 303.25 feet to
the one-quarter corner common to Sections 15 and 14, Township 27 South, Range 5 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Douglas County, Oregon; thence continuing along said East boundary
South 00°25’34” West 577.60 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod situated at the Northeast corner of that
parcel of land described in Instrument Number 2023-10143, Deed Records of Douglas County,
Oregon; thence leaving said East boundary and along the North and West boundary of said parcel
North 83°00'39” West 353.88 feet, South 89°48°'55” West 225.00 feet and South 17°35'27” West
259.52 feet to the Northeast corner of a cemetery described in Volume 21, Page 424, Deed
Records of Douglas County, Oregon; thence leaving said North and West boundary and along
the North boundary of said cemetery South 89°48'31” West 132.00 feet to the Northwest corner
of said cemetery; thence leaving said North boundary North 78°53°42” West 516.94 feet to a 5/8
inch iron rod with plastic cap inscribed “IE ENG.”; thence North 31°36’17” West 806.38 feet to a
point; thence North 89°52'41” West 1860.84 feet to a point lying on the East Right-of-Way of said
Sunshine Road; thence along said East Right-of-Way North 00°27'39” East 359.90 feet to the
point of beginning.

Containing 49.92 acres more or less.

/" REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

Digitally signed by Bartton M.
Bartton M. Heichel
Heichel %.;81.;:0?024.11 1612:22:05
OREGON

AUGUST 17, 2009
BARTTON M. HEICHEL
\ 1640PLS

RENEWS JUNE 30, 2025

Bearings for this description are base on the Oregon Coordinate Reference System (OCRS)
Cottage Grove — Canyonville Zone NAD83 (2011 Epoch 2010.00

Ordinance No. 3608 Page 4 of 7



| —

Ordinance No. 3608

PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 5 of 7



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATT X

EXHIBIT B - Old Map
PROPOSAL FOR LAND USE
JURISDICTION WITHIN
URBAN GROWTH AREA
SUB-AREA 1
CITY
JURISDICTION
| =
= SUB-AREA 2
COUNTY
JURISDICTION
7
/
. ROSEBURG / DOUGLAS. COUNTY UGMA
Ordinance No. 3608 JULY 1,1994  Page 60f 7




PUBLIC HEARINGS A
Exhibit B - New Map ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Land Use Jurisdicton Within Urban Growth Area

A D¢ o R_os_eburg City
N Limits
uc
| | Roseburg UGB
Scale: 1:75,000
SUB-AREA 1
City
0 0.5 1 Jurisdicton
L1 |
Miles SUB-AREA 2
B county
Jurisdicton

ROSEBURG/DOUGLAS COUNTY UGMA
ADOPTED:

Ordinance No. 3608 Page 7 of 7



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Table OF Contents

L@ =T 01 Y S 1
Background INformation and OVEIVIEW ...........iiiiiuiiiiiiii ettt e e e e e e e ere e e enaans 1
o0 1oV = =T 1Yo T 5 G 3
o (0 Tod =0 [0 = PP 5

Chapter 2 = UGB EXPaNSION ...uuiiiiiiiieeieeiee e e et e e e e e et e et e e e e e e e e eaeea et et e e e enaeneenaenaennenneen 6
= o 1T o PP 6
Land Inventory and Response t0 DEfiICIENCY .......couuuiiiiiiieieii e e 8
Establishment of Study Area to Evaluate Land for Inclusion in the UGB...........ccccceiviiiiieiiiiecineeeeee, 9
Exclusion of Lands from Preliminary STUAY AF€a ..........veeuuieiiiiieii e e e e e e e e e e e ean e ees 11
00|V Y = TSP PRN 11
Evaluation of Land in the Study Area for Inclusion in the UGB; Priorities .........c.cccovveiviieiiiiiiiiiineene, 15
Goal 14 Boundary LOCAtION FACTOIS .. ....ieuieiieiieie e e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeaneeenns 20
UGB EXPansion CONCIUSION .....iuuiieiiie e e et e e e e et e e e et e e e e e e et e et e et e e e an e aneeaneeanaenaens 22

Chapter 3 — Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment, Annexation, and Zone Change.............. 25
Site Description and CharaCteriSTiCS ..........uu i iiiuu it e e e e e e e e e e 25
Surrounding Parcels and Land USES .........veniieiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 26
Comprehensive Plan Map AMeNndmMENt Criteria.........vvuuierniei e e e e e e e e e 27
F A gL a1 L o] T 1 (= 4 T 32
4o =T O g T U To [T O3 ] (=5 - 39

Chapter 4 — Consistency with Statewide Planning Goals ...........cc.coooiiiiiiiiicnc e 43
Goal 1: Citizen INVOIVEMENT ... ettt e e e et e et e et e e e e e eaeeeans 43
(€70 = =g (o [ O L= o =T o o1 o P 44
Goal 3: AGHICUITUIAI LANGS .....eeee ettt e e et e e et e e e et e e e e e 46
Lo | S o =1 1 U o 46
Goal 5: Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas and Natural RESOUICES ..........ccceuvvenieiieiiieiieiieeeneenn, 46
Goal 6: Air, Water and Land Resource QUAIILY ..........ceuieiniiiiiiiie e e e e e a7
Goal 7: Areas Subject TO Natural HAzard ...........oooieuuuiiiiii et 48
Goal 8: RECreationNal NEEAS ...... .ttt e e e et e et e e e e e e eans 51
Goal 9: ECONOMY Of the STAte... ... e e e e e e e e anes 52
(CToT: 10 o o U TS oo PP 52
Goal 11: Public FaCilitieS @nd SEIVICES ... ...t e et e e e e e e e e e e e eenns 52
(€70 = I I I =T 7 o o] o = L o 52
Goal 13: ENErgy CONSEIVALION ......ccuuiieiie e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e et e et e eaeeneanns 53
GOoal 14: UrDanization ..........oeeuiiiiii i e e e e e e e e e aaan 54
GOoal 15: WIllAMELLE GIEENWAY ... .eeeveieieiii ettt ettt et e et e et e e e et e e e et e e e et e e e e et e e eeaaens 54
LCTo T | G (o T PP 54
GOAl 19: OCEAN RESOUICTES ...eeeueeuueeeueeeuteeet e eea e eeea s eeau e eaaeeet s eeaneeanaeeannaeannaaesnaaeanneeeneeenrennneennns 54

Chapter 5 — Consistency with the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan Policies......... 55
Citizen INVOIVEMENT EIBMENT ... o e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eenneennns 55
POPUIBLION EIEMENT. ...ttt ettt e ettt e e e et e e ettt e e e eaaa e e e eaaa e eeeennns 55
Natural RESOUICES EIBMENT ... e e et et e e e et e e eaaas 55
oo To o 0 T =1 1= o T o 57

TransSPOrtation EIBMENT. ... ..coou e et e et e e e et e e e e e e e e 57



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Energy Conservation EIBMENT...... ..o it e e e e r e e 58
Parks and ReCreation EIBMENT ........couuu et e e et et s e et e e e aaa e e eeeaans 58
HiStoric Preservation EIBMENT .. ... e et e et e e e et e e e ean e aeees 60
Public Facilities and Services EIBMENT ... ... e e e 60
HOUSING EIBMENT ... ettt ettt e ettt e ettt s e e et e e e e eeen e e eeeanaeeenes 60
Land Use and Urbanization EIEMENT..........oou et 60
(0o o Tod 1513 Te ] o SRR 62
Appendix 1: Copy of Emergency ACCESS EASEMENT ... ...c..iiuiiiiiiiiiiii i 63
Appendix 2: Legal Description of EXPaNSION AF & .......ccuuiiuiiiiiii ettt eeeeaaes 67
Appendix 3: Goal 5 Wetlands DeliNeationsS .........ccuiiiiiiiiiii e e 68
Appendix 4: Roseburg Fire Department Comments on Fire Prevention.............cccoceeeiveeennnnn. 71
Appendix 5: Central Douglas Fire & Rescue Comments on Fire Prevention .............c...co.ceuuee. 72

Appendix 6: ODOT COMMENTS EMAIT ... ... eeeeas 73



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

File Number CPA-24-002
Applicant City of Roseburg

Nikki Messenger, City Manager
Planning 3J Consulting, Inc
Consultant Sam Huck, Planner

Scott Fregonese, Senior Project Manager

Project Type Urban Growth Boundary Expansion, Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment,
Annexation, and Zone Change

Procedure Type UGB Amendment: Type 1V Legislative Action

The proposal contains a Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) expansion to expand
the UGB 49.92 acres, a Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment change to the
Plan Map designation for the subject site, an annexation of the land into the
City, and a Zone Change request. The applications will be reviewed
concurrently under the Legislative Action procedures. The proposal is
submitted to the City of Roseburg Planning Commission for review and
approved by the Roseburg City Council. Comprehensive Plan Amendments are
submitted to the Douglas County Planning Commission and adopted by the
Board of Commissioners.

The Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) is notified
prior to and after adoption through post-acknowledgement plan amendments
(PAPA) procedures for the proposed UGB expansion, comprehensive plan
amendment, and zoning map amendment.

Request A Type IV Legislative Action involving the addition of 49.92 acres to the UGB
and city limits. The area proposed to be added to the UGB is located on the
east and north side of the existing UGB on a portion of the City-owned
properties collectively known as Sunshine Park.

City staff requests that the Planning Commissions make positive

recommendations to City Council and the Board of Commissioners on four

actions regarding the expansion of the city’s Urban Growth Boundary to

accommodate the development of public facilities:

1. An amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Map to:

a. Expand the Roseburg Urban Growth Boundary to include the proposed
portions of parcels within the city’s urbanizable area, and;

b. Designate the area as Public/Semi-public comprehensive plan map
designation.

An application to Annex the area into the City of Roseburg.

3. An amendment of the Roseburg Zoning Map to apply Public Reserve
zoning to land brought into the UGB and city limits.

4. An amendment of the Map in the Urban Growth Management Agreement
between the City and the County.

N



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Chapter 1 - Introduction

Background Information and Overview

The City of Roseburg has been providing parks for its residents since the early 1930s when the first three
parks were built for the community. Through the years the City has made efforts to increase its inventory
and keep up with the pace of growth within the community, adding a number of park sites within the City.
The most recent parks development is Sunshine Park, completed in 2001. Sunshine Park was added to help
relieve pressure on facilities at Stewart Park. In addition to the three softball and two baseball fields at
Sunshine Park, a restored wetland area, picnic areas, and internal trails have been developed.

Sunshine Park is located on the east edge of the City of Roseburg. The park site is a total of 87.2 acres
and is located at 205 Sunshine Road in Roseburg, Oregon. The site is comprised of four parcels, identified
as with the following locations:

Township Range Section Tax lot
27S 05w 15C 00100
27S 05W 15D 00100
27S 05W 15D 00105
27S 05w 15D 00104

The site is located partially within the City of Roseburg, and partially within Douglas County. Three of the
four parcels are split between the City of Roseburg and Douglas County jurisdictions, with the city limits
and Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) bisecting the parcels. The fourth parcel is entirely outside the city limits
and the UGB. The parcels and the relationship to the city limits and UGB are illustrated in Figure 1.

The City purchased the majority of the Sunshine Park Property in 1999. Later in 1999, the City obtained a
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) approval from Douglas County for the use of the property as a park within
the Forest Grazing (FG) zoning. As part of the land use decision it was determined that the park was
compatible with nearby existing uses and other uses permitted in the FG zone.

Approximately 40 acres of the 87.2 acre park site are currently developed. The City of Roseburg’s
Comprehensive Parks Master Plan outlined that the remaining acreage should remain more natural,
although trails, viewpoints, and pichic amenities could be added. In the Parks Master Plan the City identified
that a key element of success for Sunshine Park is to find ways of drawing additional users to the park as
an important strategy for maintaining the community’s investment at this site.

Roseburg’s Comprehensive Parks Master Plan, adopted in 2008 identified and recommended projects for
Sunshine Park that would enhance the park user experience and bring additional visitors to the park. Some
of the recommended improvements in the Master Plan have been implemented over the last 25 years. The
park has been maintained and operated solely by the City of Roseburg Parks and Recreation Department
throughout this time.

The undeveloped portions of Sunshine Park are located outside of the UGB and the city limits, and has
previously been identified within the Parks Master Plan as a future location for a trail system to be
developed. The area is characterized by two pronounced knolls that peak on the northern property line,
sloping south into a wetlands area. The knolls are steepest near their peak, ranging from 30 to 70 percent
slopes and lessen to 12 to 20 percent slopes near the base. While these slopes make it difficult to utilize
the property for specific types of farming activity, the varied elevation makes it a perfect candidate for a
small, but effective trail system within the existing park.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 1 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

The developed portion of Sunshine Park is located inside the city limits boundary and is zoned Public
Reserve by the City of Roseburg. The remainder of the property that lies outside of the City Limits within
Douglas County'’s jurisdiction is zoned Exclusive Farm Use - Farm Grazing (FG). No other zoning overlays
apply to the properties.

In late 2020, the City of Roseburg applied to the Douglas County Planning Commission for a Conditional
Use Permit (CUP) to develop trails for mountain biking and hiking on the unincorporated portions of the
property owned by the City. In early 2021, the City withdrew this application prior to the public hearing
before the County Planning Commission.

In 2022, the City applied to the Douglas County Planning Commission for a revised CUP to develop trails
for mountain biking and hiking on the unincorporated portions of the park. That application was
conditionally approved, and subsequently appealed to the Douglas County Board of Commissioners who
denied the CUP. The denial by the Board of Commissioners was appealed to Oregon’s Land Use Board of
Appeals who remanded the decision back to the County Board of Commissioners requiring the Board to
explain in revised findings why the Board of Commissioners concluded that the proposed use is not
compatible and cannot be made compatible with existing adjacent permitted uses and other uses permitted
in the underlying zone. A revised Findings of Fact and Order, denying the application on remand from LUBA
was approved by the County Board of Commissioners on January 31, 2024. In the public hearing with the
County Board of Commissioners and other on-the-record meetings, Douglas County commissioners
mentioned that the City should annex the land into the City and follow its own procedures for the proposed
development action.

This proposal is for an expansion of the City of Roseburg’s UGB which will allow for a comprehensive plan
map designation to be assigned to the areas outside of city limits. Upon expansion of the UGB, the City will
then annex the land, up to the UGB expansion line, and apply appropriate zoning designations to those
portions of properties. This will allow the City to propose a development action for the trail system in the
park which will be reviewed for compliance with City codes and policies at a later date.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 2 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 1. Community Boundaries

Policy Framework

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 3 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

The State of Oregon, Douglas County, and the City of Roseburg all have policies and rules to direct when,
where, and how to expand the UGB. The following lists the various policies that are within this regulatory
framework:
e State of Oregon
0 Oregon Administrative Rules 660-024
0 Goal 14: Urbanization
e Douglas County
o0 Urban Growth Management Agreement between Douglas County and Roseburg
e City of Roseburg
0 Roseburg Comprehensive Plan
0 Roseburg Municipal Code 12.10.020 - Legislative Action Procedures

Statewide Planning Goal 14: Urbanization, guides the expansion of UGBs in Oregon. The purpose of Goal
14 is to “provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to accommodate urban
population and urban employment inside urban growth boundaries, to ensure efficient use of land, and to
provide for livable communities.”

To amend or expand a UGB a city must demonstrate through a boundary location analysis and through
comparing alternative locations that the location is the best area to meet the need. Through this process a
city must consider where an expansion of the UGB will result in the most accommodating and cost effective
expansion, where it would provide for the fewest conflicts with surrounding other uses, and where an
expansion would cause the fewest negative social, environmental, and economic impacts.

Through discussions with the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) staff, the City
determined that the standard method for a UGB expansion for less than 50 acres bests suits Roseburg in
this scenario. When a UGB expansion is smaller than 50 acres, the amendment is subject to the post-
acknowledgement plan amendment procedures in ORS 197.610-197.625 and OAR 660, Division 18. DLCD
does not have a direct role in approving the UGB expansion in this case but has the right to participate in
local proceedings. The Standard Method is governed by Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660-024.

Because this UGB Expansion is for the purpose of expanding the UGB to accommodate a public facility that
requires specific site characteristics, and the site characteristics may be found in only a small number of
locations, the preliminary study area is limited to locations where the specific site characteristics can be
met.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 4 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Procedures

The City of Roseburg will apply for the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Map to expand the urban
growth boundary through the post-acknowledgment plan amendment (PAPA) process. The City will
sequence the adoption of the UGB expansion in the following order:

1.

2.

City staff submit to DLCD notice of a proposed change to a comprehensive plan or land use
regulation (PAPA Notice Form 1), 35 days prior to the first evidentiary hearing;

Joint City Planning Commission and Douglas County Planning Commission public hearing to make
a recommendation and forward Findings of Facts to the Roseburg City Council and Douglas County
Board of Commissioners for the proposed UGB expansion. Roseburg Planning Commission will also
make a recommendation and forward Findings of Facts to City Council on the proposed
Comprehensive Plan Map amendment, annexation, and zone change applications. These
applications will be concurrently reviewed by the City with the UGB expansion under the Legislative
Action procedures;

Roseburg City Council public hearing to review recommendation from Planning Commission on UGB
expansion and proposed Comprehensive Plan Map amendment, annexation, and zone change
applications and make motions to adopt, amend, or deny proposal. The City will notify Douglas
County in writing of the final decision;

Douglas County Board of Commissioners public hearing to review recommendation on proposed
UGB expansion, and make motion to grant, amend, or deny the proposal;

Upon approval by City Council on the UGB expansion and proposed Comprehensive Plan Map
amendment, annexation, and zone change applications, and granted approval by County
Commissioner on the UGB expansion, City staff will submit notice of adopted change to a plan or
implementing regulation (PAPA Notice Form 2) to DLCD.

The Douglas County and City of Roseburg Urban Growth Management Agreement boundaries and
maps will be updated upon the successful completion of a UGB expansion.

Ordinances will be drafted as part of this procedural process for the inclusion of a large portion of Sunshine
Park (49.92 acres) to be included into the Roseburg UGB, amend the Roseburg Comprehensive Plan Map,
annex the land into the Roseburg city limits, and apply city zoning designation Public Reserve (PR).

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 5 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Chapter 2 - UGB Bxpansion

Prior to any comprehensive map amendment, annexation, and zone change applications, the City must
evaluate what land would be best for a UGB expansion in order to meet an established land need. The City
followed the recommendations from Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) staff, and
the Oregon Administrative Rules (OARs) for a UGB expansion. The following chapter outlines the steps
taken to determine what land best meets the identified land need for a UGB expansion.

Land Need

This section outlines the inventory and demonstrates the land need for additional land within the Roseburg
UGB for public parks. Because the proposal is to amend the UGB for park land, the residential land needs
identified through the adopted HNA are not addressed as part of this review.

Population increases in Roseburg, Douglas County, and Oregon have remained steady for the past twenty
years. According to the Portland State University Population Research Center (PRC), the trend will continue
with an average annual growth rate of 0.5% for the next 20 years. The 2022 population inside the City of
Roseburg UGB is 29,631 residents, with 24,258 of those being within the city limits. The population forecast
for all population inside the existing Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) shows the population increasing by
over 4,000 residents by the year 2047, bringing the total to nearly 34,000 residents.

The City of Roseburg adopted a Comprehensive Parks Master Plan in April 2008. The Master Plan
inventoried 362 acres of park land in the City at the time of adoption. The City of Roseburg has added one
park to the park inventory in the time since. The City has also expanded several parks since the Master
Plan was adopted, bringing the current acreage of park land in the City to 428 acres, which includes areas
of passive and active recreation sites, and includes all of Sunshine Park.

The Master Plan identified Sunshine Park as an existing Community Park, which is defined as minimum size
of 15-20 acres, accessible by walking, bicycling or driving, have connections to community transit and other
trail networks where possible, and have a minimum of 200 feet of street frontage. The entire 87.2 acres of
Sunshine Park was identified as one of three community parks in the City.

Sunshine Park was included in the Master Plan as part of the City parks system with the full acreage of the
park counted. This was an oversight at the time, as not all of the park is inside the city limits. The Master
Plan had no indication or mention that some of Sunshine Park was located outside the UGB, and did not
indicate that there would be any barriers to land use actions proposed to park improvements that were
recommended in the report.

After removing the portion of Sunshine Park that is not within the City or UGB, the current acreage of park
land in the City today is 373.6 acres.

The Master Plan outlines additional park space needed to provide close-to-home recreation opportunities
for all residents. The population projections in the Master Plan projected a total population of 39,828
residents in the UGB for the year 2020. The actual population in 2020 based on Portland State University’s
Population Research Center (PRC) was 29,498 residents inside the UGB. The 2022 population as forecasted
by the PRC, is 29,631 residents inside the UGB. Using the average annual growth rate of 0.5% as
established by the PRC, the forecasted population for the Roseburg UGB in 2024 is 29,974 residents. The
projected increase in the population in the Master Plan does not match the reality of population increase
in the Roseburg UGB.

In 2008, at the time of publication and adoption of the Master Plan, an additional 15 acres of parks were
needed to accommodate current residents. The 53.2 acres of unincorporated area of Sunshine Park should

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 6 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

have been included in that amount of park need identified for the current resident population of 2008.
Adding the portion of Sunshine Park outside of the City limits to the 2008 need, there is a total of 68.2
acres of park land needed to meet 2008 population park land need.

Based on the projected population increases in the Master Plan, there is a stated 83 acres of park land
needed by 2027 to accommodate the projected population growth of the City. This amount, combined with
the 15 acres identified as needed for current 2008 residents, brings a total need of 98 acres by 2027. As
established, the City of Roseburg did not grow in population at the rate that the Master Plan predicted.
Therefore it should not be assumed that the full projected need should be applied to the current population.

The City has remained close to the total measured level of service of 14.21 acres per 1,000 population in
the Master Plan. If the same level of service is applied to the 2024 forecasted population of 29,974
residents, a total of 425.9 acres of park land should exist to meet the needs of residents in the City and
UGB at that level of service.

As of today, the City has increased the park land acreage from the 2008 amount by 66 acres, to a total of
373.6 acres (not including the unincorporated portion of Sunshine Park). In order to correct the mistake
made in the Master Plan, the City proposes to expand the UGB for most of the remaining park land need.

The current land need for parks is established as the total acres of park land that should exist to meet the
needs of residents in the City and UGB, minus the actual existing amount of park land in the City.

425.9 acres — 373.6 acres = 52.3 acres

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 7 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Land Inventory and Response to Deficiency

OAR 660-024-0050 requires a City to inventory and determine the buildable capacity for vacant land within
the existing UGB when evaluating or amending a UGB. This section specifically provides the guidelines for
residential land and employment land, and provides safe harbor assumptions for the buildable capacity of
those residential and/or employment lands.

Because this UGB amendment is for a particular public facility, specifically park land, these requirements
are not applicable to this proposal. In accordance with OAR 660-024-0050(7), and because this UGB
expansion proposal is for a particular public facility, the City has planned and proposes zoning for the
intended use. The intended use is for a park, and the proposed zoning is Public Reserve (PR).

The City understands and acknowledges that the PR zoning must remain for that use unless the City
removes the land from the UGB.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 8 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Establishment of Study Area to Evaluate Land for Inclusion in the UGB

As established, the City finds that a park land deficit of 52.3 acres remains. This section establishes and
evaluates the Roseburg UGB Expansion Study Area to satisfy the land need. The process of establishing
and evaluating the Study Area is dictated by Oregon Administrative Rules, and includes the following:

e Create Preliminary Study Area

e Exclusion of Lands from Preliminary Study Area

e Study Area

Create Preliminary Study Area

Defining the area to be considered for expansion, known as the Preliminary Study Area, is dictated by OAR
660-024-0065. The provisions of the administrative rule state that if the primary purpose for expansion of
the UGB to accommodate a public facility that requires specific site characteristics, and the site
characteristics may be found in only a small number of locations, the preliminary study area may be limited
to those locations that have or could be improved to provide the required site characteristics within one
and one-half miles of the existing UGB. The one and one-half miles standard is established because the
City has a UGB population greater than 10,000.

OAR 660-024-0065(4) states that a “public facility” may include a facility necessary for parks. The specific
site characteristics may include size, topography and proximity, but are not limited to those characteristics.

For this UGB expansion proposal, the City has limited the preliminary study area to areas that meet the
size, topography, proximity, zoning designation, and amount of high-value farmland that would be
appropriate for a UGB expansion for a park.

The City will be using funds obtained through an awarded grant to build a trail system. The UGB expansion
will only be considered on lands that have the specific site characteristics that the grant is approved for
and all other land within the one and one-half mile radius that also have those specific site characteristics.
The parameters of specific site characteristics are limited to:

Size of Topo_graphy — Proximity Zoning Amount of High-Value
parcels Minimum %o . .
Designation Farmland
(acres) Slope
20-60 50% of site has Adjacent to existing G Not predominately high-
sloped areas UGB and City Limits value

Size

The size of area for the UGB expansion for park land should meet or nearly meet the land need identified.
Because a park land deficit of 52.3 acres exists, the City looked at sites that would meet this need.
Properties that could be organized into 20-60 acre parcels or groups of parcels have been included in the
preliminary study area. These parcels could be combined with other existing land inside the UGB, or
operated collectively as a community park of 20 to 100 acres in size. The study area will also adhere to the
administrative rule of having at least twice the land need.

Topography

The intent for this park land is to accommodate a trail system. The grant from the Oregon Parks and
Recreation Department: Local Government Grant Program is to build trails in the City; therefore parcels are
only included in the preliminary study area if they have at least 50 percent of the property having areas of
slope ranging from 10 percent to 25 percent or greater, which would be most suitable for a trail system.

Proximity

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 9 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

In order to meet the park land need, the preliminary study area is limited to properties that are in close
proximity to the existing UGB and the existing city limits. Parcels are only included in the preliminary study
area if they are adjacent to or contiguous to the existing UGB and city limits and meet all other specific site
characteristics.

Zoning Designation

The grant from the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department: Local Government Grant Program is to build
trails in the City on land zoned FG. Therefore, only parcels zoned FG are included in the preliminary study
area.

Amount of High Value Farmland
The intent for this park land is to accommodate a trail system with the grant funds. The site for the grant
funds to be utilized might contain some high-value farmland, but should not be considered primarily high-
value farmland. The preliminary study area is therefore limited to areas outside of the UGB that are not
predominately high-value farmland.

Preliminary Study Area Parcels

The preliminary study area is limited to areas outside of the UGB that meet all of the above listed specific
site characteristics. One group of parcels that have the specific site characteristics are the parcels of the
existing Sunshine Park that are outside the UGB. This site, which will be described in this report as “Site A”
is comprised of the following tax lots:

Township Range Section Tax lot Size
27S o5wW 15C 00100 7.36 acres
27S 05w 15D 00100 6.12 acres
27S o5w 15D 00104 40.70 acres

One other parcel meets the specific site characteristics listed above. Therefore, it is included in the
preliminary study area. This site, which will be described in this report as “Site B” is comprised of the
following tax lot:

Township | Range |  Section |  Taxlot | Size
27S | 06W | 15 | 00500 | 55.88 acres

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 10 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Exclusion of Lands from Preliminary Study Area

The City has decided that no portion of the preliminary study area will be excluded.

Study Area

As established the land need for the UGB expansion for park land is 52.3 acres. The total acreage in the
finalized Study Area is 109.1 acres. OAR 660-024-0065(5) requires that the Study Area contain at least
twice the amount of land needed for the deficiency determined in OAR 660-024-0050(4). The amount of
land in the Study Area meets this threshold.

Figures 2 and 3 below illustrates the Study Area on Site A and Site B, which includes 109.1 acres on the
four tax lots. The Study Area consists only of land that is of an appropriate size for a city park, has areas
of slope that are 10% or greater, is adjacent to the existing UGB and city limits, is zoned Farm Grazing
(FG), and is not considered predominantly high-value farmland.

The City finds that the Study Area shown in Figure 4 complies with the requirements of OAR 660-024-0065
by establishing a Study Area to evaluate land for inclusion to a UGB.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 11 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 2. Site A

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 12 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 3. Site B

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 13 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 4. Study Area

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 14 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Evaluation of Land in the Study Area for Inclusion in the UGB; Priorities
- Priority Categorization
- Suitability
- Goal 14 Boundary Location Factors

The process for evaluating and prioritizing land for inclusion in the UGB is described in OAR-660-024-0067.
The highest priority land for inclusion is analyzed for suitability to meet the deficiency for the park land
need. If there is no excess of the highest priority suitable land established, those lands are established as
areas for inclusion into the UGB. If a deficiency of land still exists after the highest priority suitable lands
are established for inclusion, the next highest priority of land is analyzed for suitability. Goal 14 location
factors are applied to any excess land to determine the best areas for inclusion. This process results in
determining what land will meet the need for a UGB adjustment.

First Priority for Inclusion (OAR 660-024-0067(2)(a)

The First Priority includes urban reserves, exception lands, and nonresource lands. The City does not have
any acknowledged urban reserves, and the Study Area does not contain any areas of exception lands or
nonresource lands. The City finds that there is no first priority land within the study area to meet the
identified land need, and proceeds to the next highest priority category to determine and select for UGB
inclusion.

Second Priority for Inclusion (OAR 660-024-0067(2)(b)

The Second Priority for inclusion into the UGB are marginal lands as determined by OAR 660-024-
0067(2)(b). There are no marginal lands in the study area, therefore no marginal lands are considered for
inclusion into the UGB. The City finds that there is no second priority land within the study area to meet
the identified land need, and proceeds to the next highest priority category to determine and select for
UGB inclusion.

Third Priority for Inclusion (OAR 660-024-0067(2)(c)

The Third Priority for inclusion into the UGB are agriculture or forest lands that are not predominantly high-
value farmland (as defined in ORS 195.300 and ORS 215.710), or lands that do not consist predominantly
of prime or unique soils (as determined by the United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources
Conservation Service). The high-value farmland areas shown in Figure 5 and 6, demonstrates that the
remainder of the Study Area will be evaluated for third priority inclusion, because each unit of land does
not consist of predominantly high-value farmland. OAR 660-024-0067(4)(a) allows for areas of land not
larger than 100 acres to be grouped together and studied as a single unit of land. Site A is not larger than
100 acres therefore the land can be grouped and analyzed as a single unit. Similarly, Site B is not larger
than 100 acres, so that land is grouped and analyzed as a single unit of land. However, Site A and Site B
have not been grouped into one combined unit of land, and are analyzed separately. In accordance with
this rule, Site A and Site B will be separately analyzed for the purposes of categorizing and evaluating land
pursuant to the third priority.

Fourth Priority for Inclusion (OAR 660-024-0067(2)(d)

The Fourth Priority for inclusion into the UGB are agricultural land that is predominantly high-value
farmland. A city may bit select land that is predominantly made up of prime or unique farm soils, as defined
by the USDA NRCS, unless there is an insufficient amount of other land to satisfy its land need.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 15 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Site A is grouped together and studied as a single unit of land. This unit of land is not predominantly high-
value farmland as demonstrated in Figure 5 and Table 1 below, therefore it will be reviewed for suitability
and inclusion into the UGB as Third Priority land.

Similarly, Site B is grouped together and studied as a single unit of land. This unit of land is not

predominantly high-value farmland as demonstrated in Figure 6 and Table 1 below, therefore it will be
reviewed for suitability and inclusion into the UGB as Third Priority land.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 16 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 5. Site A — High-value Farmland

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 17 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 6. Site B — High-value Farmland

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 18 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Table 1. Prime or Unique Soils and High-Value Farmland

Total Prime or Percent of Acres High-Value Percent
Site Acres in | Unique Soils | with Prime or Farmland High-Value

Site (Acres) Unique Soils Acres Farmland
Site A 53.2 0 0% 9.8 18.4%
Site B 55.9 1.7 3% 10.6 19.0%

The City finds that neither Site A nor Site B is considered predominantly high-value farmland, based on the
definitions of ORS 195.300(10) and ORS 215.710, for the purposes of determining third and fourth priority
of land for inclusion in a UGB as outlined in OAR 660-024-0067(2), each site is considered third priority for
inclusion.

There is a total of 109.1 acres of third priority land in the Study Area. The City assumes that vacant or
partially vacant land in the third priority category is “suitable” to satisfy land need, as required by OAR 660-
024-0067(5). Therefore, 109.1 acres of land is suitable to meet the park land need. The City finds that Site
A and Site B are options for UGB expansion. These finding are consistent with ORS 197A.320, OAR 660-
024-0067(2), and the definitions for high value farmland in ORS 195.300 and ORS 215.710.

Next the City will choose which land of the third priority to include in the UGB by first applying the boundary

location factors of Goal 14. The selection will be evaluated with applicable criteria in the acknowledged
comprehensive plan and land use regulations prior to initiation of the UGB amendment.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 19 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Goal 14 Boundary Location Factors

This section includes findings demonstrating compliance with the Goal 14 location factors. This analysis will
determine which of the two sites will result in a UGB expansion that is the most accommodating and cost
effective, while creating the fewest conflicts between neighboring land uses, and cause the fewest negative
environmental, economic, social and energy consequences.

Goal 14 establishes four boundary location factors that must be considered when reviewing alternative
boundaries:
1. Efficient accommodation of identified land needs;
2. Orderly and economic provision of public facilities;
3. Comparative environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; and,
4. Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities occurring on
farm and forest land outside of the UGB.

Factor 1: Efficient accommodation of identified land needs
Factor 1 includes characteristics that would provide public facilities adjacent to existing development areas
and provide for the most contiguous urbanization of land.

Both sites are contiguous to and adjacent to the existing city limits and UGB boundary, and are therefore
“efficient” areas of land to meet the land need. However, Site A has the greatest ability to meet the intent
of Factor 1 due to its proximity to the existing UGB and the existing city limits boundary, and because the
site is already a park. No practical measure of efficiency would find that Site B is a more efficient
accommaodation of the identified need due to the existing condition of Site A being owned and operated by
the City of Roseburg as a park. Simply put, Site A is the most efficient location for a park because it already
is a park. Therefore, the City finds that Site A provides the best opportunities for development of park
facilities and provides the opportunity for the entirety of Sunshine Park to be inside the UGB and city limits.

Factor 2: Orderly and economic provision of public facilities

Site A has existing access to public facilities, as it is already in operation as a park. Site A has a portion of
the site with developed parking areas and access to Sunshine Road, which is classified as a Minor Collector
road, and connects to North Umpqua Highway. Water services are available at the park that are owned
and operated by the City of Roseburg. Sewer services are provided to the park that are owned and operated
by the Roseburg Urban Sanitary Authority (RUSA). RUSA also serves the surrounding properties.
Stormwater systems at Site A are owned and operated by the City of Roseburg. The storm system from
Site A drains into a natural drainage that flows into ODOT right-of-way along Highway 138E. Pacific Power
serves Site A and the surrounding properties. The portions of Sunshine Park that are already inside the
UGB are served by the City of Roseburg Fire Department and Police Department, and Site A would be
served by these services if chosen for expansion. Regular maintenance is performed at Site A on park
facilities by City of Roseburg Parks Department staff on a routine basis. This includes facilities maintenance,
janitorial services, and landscaping. Trash and Recycling services are provided to the site by Roseburg
Disposal. Site B does not have any existing public facilities available to it, therefore the most orderly and
cost-effective provision of public facilities would be better served at Site A because all public facilities are
currently available and operational. The City finds that Site A will provide the best opportunities to use
existing connections to public services and facilities. Site A is the most economical location for the City of
Roseburg UGB expansion after considering the provisions for roads, water, wastewater and other public
facilities.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 20 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Factor 3: Comparative environmental, energy, economic and social consequences
Environmental consequences

Site A has relatively few environmental consequences due to the existing access and development on the
site that is intended for use as a park. Site B would have environmental consequences and impacts related
to establishing a vehicular access route, and due to the likely need for clearing of forested lands for the
development of a park.

Energy consequences

From a transportation perspective, Site A has relatively few energy consequences due to the existing
transportation network that serves the site. Site B would have comparatively more energy consequences
due to the need to develop transportation connections to the site from the rest of the City.

Economic consequences
Both sites have comparatively similar economic consequences. Increasing street connectivity and recreation
opportunities within the City will have potential positive economic impacts.

Social conseqguences

Site B would likely have more negative social consequences due to the amount of existing households and
properties that would be disrupted by the installation and construction of public facilities necessary to
support a new park. Site A will have few negative social consequences if brought into the UGB, and will
allow for the development of a trail system on the existing park land. Development of more amenities on
parks will provide positive social consequences.

The City finds that Site A would have the most positive and least negative comparative environmental,
energy, economic and social consequences.

Factor 4: Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest
activities occurring on farm and forest land outside the urban growth boundary

A wide variety of zones and land uses exist immediately around Site A, which is currently zoned Forest
Grazing (FG). In the vicinity of Site A is a 70-lot subdivision to the north, a 144-unit apartment complex to
the west, heavy industrial uses (Nordic Veneer) immediately to the south and southeast, farmland to the
east, and Hwy 138 to the south. There is also a historic cemetery within one of the parcels of Site A. The
site is directly on the city boundary and the UGB boundary. With the exception of the new apartment units
across the street from Sunshine Road these different types of uses have existed in conjunction with one
another for many years.

Several different zones and land uses exist immediately around Site B also. The site is currently zoned
Forest Grazing (FG), and has FG zoning to the north, south, and west, as well as Limited Multiple-Family
Residential (MR14) city zoning to the east. The site is directly on the city boundary and UGB boundary, and
these different types of uses have also existed in conjunction with one another for years.

Both Site A and Site B are zoned FG. Below is a list of uses currently permitted in the FG zone. Each of
these uses have the ability to exceed the intensity of the proposed park and future trail network concerning
their ability to produce more noise, odor, dust, smoke, fumes, etc. The list is as follows:

o Facilities for the processing of farm crops

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 21 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

o Facilities for the processing of bio-fuel

e Wineries

e Restaurants, in conjunction with a winery

e Agri-tourism commercial events

e Dog training facilities

e  Operations for the exploration of minerals or geothermal resources
e Model aircraft take-off and landing sites

In previous public hearings related to a proposed trail system at Sunshine Park (Site A), public comments
were made indicating concerns about fire danger. In order to mitigate this concern, the City reached out
to the Douglas Forest Protective Association (DFPA), Central Douglas Fire and Rescue, and The City of
Roseburg Fire Department, to discuss the possibility of an added risk of wildfire due to the proposed new
trails. Letters provided by the Fire Prevention Officer at the Douglas Forest Protective Association, the Fire
Chief at the Roseburg Fire Department and the Battalion Chief at Central Douglas Fire and Rescue were
entered into the record for the previous public hearings, which each indicated that the trails would not
significantly increase fire danger to the area. The consensus was that in the event that wildfire were to
occur the trails would actually benefit the area by doing the following:

e The trails will function as natural fire breaks potentially slowing down the advancement of fire.

e The trails will increase access to the area providing better routes for fire suppression efforts.

o Use of the trail may allow for earlier detection of fire aiding in the response of emergency personnel.
Since the initial public hearings for the conditional use permit the DFPA has not provided an updated
comment. With the expansion of the UGB and the annexation of the land into the city limits, the DFPA will
no longer have jurisdiction over the areas annexed into the city limits. Updated letters from the Fire Chief
at the Roseburg Fire Department and the Division Chief — Fire Marshall at Central Douglas Fire and Rescue
are included with this application in Appendices 4 and 5.

In addition to the fire mitigation benefits of the proposed trails which will be the future development of
either Site, the city has existing and ongoing measures to address potential fire hazards at City owned and
operated parks. The City owns and operates a 500,000 gallon water reservoir, Boyer Reservoir, located
1,600 feet to the south of Site A that provides fire protection to the park. As for ongoing measures, the
City is currently planning to upsize the water main that feeds Sunshine Park and Site A from an 8-inch
diameter pipe to an 18-inch diameter. This will increase the water availability for fire protection.

The City finds that the addition of either Site A or Site B will have no ill effect on the way in which the farm
and forest uses have been able to exist currently. When compared to other types of recreational amenities
or permitted farm uses that could occur currently in place of the proposed trails, the City finds that the use
of a park and its level of impact to the area will be minimal.

With measures taken to address concerns over fire danger that have already occurred at Site A, the City
finds that Site A will be more compatible with nearby agricultural and forest activities occurring on farm
and forest land outside the urban growth boundary.

UGB Expansion Conclusion
Based on the analysis findings presented above, the City concludes that the best location for Roseburg to
meet the identified park land need deficiencies is expansion of the UGB into Site A.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 22 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

The City of Roseburg is required to identify the specific expansion areas within Site A and to assign the
appropriate urban plan designations to the added lands, consistent with the need determined (OAR 660-
024-0050). Upon inclusion into the UGB, the portion of Sunshine Park that is not currently in the City is
proposed to have the matching comprehensive plan map designation of Public/Semi-public (PSP). Upon
annexation, the City will apply the matching zoning designation of the existing portions of the park as Public
Reserve (PR). The City has determined that a 49.92 acre portion of Site A will be the best location for the
proposed expansion and inclusion into City limits. The expansion area boundaries have been chosen to
have the least potential impact on surrounding uses while still meeting a majority of the identified land
need. The 49.92 acres that make up the expansion area consist of the following parcels:

Township Range Section Tax lot
27S 05w 15C 00100
27S 05W 15D 00100
27S o5w 15D 00104

Figure 7 below shows the expansion area proposed.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 23 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 7. UGB Expansion at Sunshine Park

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 24 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Chapter 3 - Conprehensive Flan Map Amendment,
Annexation, and Zone Change

The City of Roseburg (the “City”) proposes to annex the portion of Sunshine Park that has been proposed
for the UGB Expansion, herein established as the 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park. The City seeks approval of
a Comprehensive Plan Map amendment, Annexation, and Zone Change applications for concurrent
approval. This chapter describes the proposal and demonstrates compliance with the relevant approval
standards of the City of Roseburg’s Title 12 Land Use and Development Regulations, Chapter 12.04, and
Chapter 12.10.

The Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment, Annexation, and Zone Change applications will be concurrently
evaluated with the proposed UGB Expansion under the legislative action procedures and decision process.
The proposal will be heard by the City of Roseburg Planning Commission and Douglas County Planning
Commission in a joint public hearing. These commissions will forward a recommendation to the Roseburg
City Council and Douglas County Board of Commissioners for their respective decisions. The City Council
will render the decision on the Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment, Annexation, and Zone Change
applications after a public hearing on the applications is held.

The following sections of the City of Roseburg’s Title 12 Land Use and Development Regulations, and the
City of Roseburg Comprehensive Plan have been extracted as they have been deemed to be applicable to
the proposal. Following each bold applicable criteria, the City has provided a series of findings. The intent
of providing code and detailed responses is to document, with absolute certainty, that the proposal has
satisfied the approval criteria for the Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment, Annexation, and Zone Change
applications.

Site Description and Characteristics
The property is addressed as 205 Sunshine Road and further identified with the following legal parcel
descriptions:

Township Range Section Tax lot
27S 05w 15C 00100
27S 05w 15D 00100
27S 05W 15D 00104

The expansion area has a total of six tax account identification numbers for the three subject parcels:
R67304, R67290, R129115, R129116, R67353, and R67346. The approximately 0.15 acre portion of parcel
27S 05W 15D 00105 is not proposed for the expansion area and will remain in Douglas County jurisdiction.
Approximately 3 acres in the southern portion of parcel 27S 05W 15D 104, and the approximately 0.15
acre portion of parcel 00105 described above will remain outside of the expansion area and is not proposed
for inclusion into the UGB and city limits.

The subject property proposed for UGB expansion and inclusion into the city limits is roughly 3.5 miles east
of Roseburg’s downtown area lying just north of the Diamond Lake Boulevard / Highway 138 corridor.
Approximately 30 acres of Sunshine Park site is currently developed. The area developed consists of the
land directly adjacent to Sunshine Road and Highway 138 and includes ball fields, parking area, pavilions,
a playground, and recreational trails. This proposal will allow for the inclusion of the unincorporated areas
of Sunshine Park to be incorporated into the City and for the appropriate comprehensive plan and zoning
designations to be applied to the site.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 25 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

The developed portions of Sunshine Park are located near the corner of Sunshine Road and Highway 138.
The entrance to the park is off Sunshine Road approximately 750 feet north of the Highway 138
intersection. The site has approximately 225 parking spaces that serve the current facilities with a large
turn around at the eastern terminus of the parking area. Additionally, the City has acquired a 25-foot wide
access easement from the adjacent property owners to the east (350 Temple Brown Road) in order to
provide immediate emergency access to the eastern portion of the park from Temple Brown Road (See
Appendix 1).

A legal description of the area proposed for UGB expansion and inclusion via annexation is provided with
this report in Appendix 2.

Surrounding Parcels and Land Uses

The park property is bordered to the south by Highway 138 and the Nordic Veneer Mill and to the east with
rural home sites and agriculturally zoned properties. The properties to the north of the site consist of 5-
acre rural residential parcels, which are primarily wooded hillside lands. The property directly to the west
across Sunshine Road is a recently completed 144 unit multi-family housing development (Sunshine Park
Apartments). The UGB expansion area, existing comprehensive plan map designation, and surrounding
zoning is demonstrated in Figure 8.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 26 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment Criteria

Upon inclusion of the site into the UGB, the City will apply the Comprehensive Plan Map designation of
Public/Semi-public (PSP). The future comprehensive plan designation map is demonstrated in Figure 9. The
applicable approval criteria for the proposed Comprehensive Map Amendment is contained within the
following:

12.10.020 LEGISLATIVE ACTION PROCEDURES.

A.

Purpose. The purpose of Subsections 12.10.020(A)—(1) is to establish procedures for
considering legislative proposals and actions, including but not limited to legislative
amendments of the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan text or map, legislative
amendments to the text of this Code, and legislative zone changes.

Finding: This proposal includes an application for a comprehensive plan map amendment, therefore

the Legislative Action Procedures will be used and followed.

B. Determination of applicable process. The Community Development Director, in

consultation with the City Attorney, shall be responsible for determining if a particular
proposal is a legislative action under applicable law or an application for development
approval. A legislative action shall be processed according to this Section. An application
for development approval shall be processed by quasi-fudicial public hearing or
administrative action, pursuant to the Development Approval Procedures set forth in
Section 12.10.010 of this Code. The determination of the Director as to whether a
particular proposal is a legislative action shall be subject to review by the Planning
Commission and the City Council.

Finding: On behalf of the City the City Manager, Nikki Messenger, consulted with the Community

Development Director, who in consultation with the City Attorney, determined that this
proposal is a legislative action under applicable law. This criteria is met.

C. Who may initiate. Proposals for legislative actions may only be initiated by the Director,

the Planning Commission, the City Council, or any individual member of the City Council.

Finding: This proposal was initiated by the Director, on behalf of the City, with direct guidance from

City Manager Nikki Messenger. This criteria is met.

D. Notice and hearing by the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall hold a

public hearing on any proposed legislative action after publishing notice of the hearing at
least 10 days prior to the hearing in a newspaper of general circulation published in the
area affected by the proposed legisiative action. The notice shall contain the time, place,
and purpose of the hearing and a description of the land to be subject to the proposed
legislative action.

Finding: The City understands that a joint hearing with the Douglas County Planning Commission and

the City of Roseburg Planning Commission will be held after the proper public notice has
been published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area near the subject site. The
notice contains the time, place, and purpose of the hearing and a description of the land to
be subject to the proposed legislative action. This criteria is met.

E. Hearing procedure.

1. In the conduct of public hearings pursuant to this Section, the Planning Commission
and the City Council shall have the authority to:
a. Rule on procedural questions,

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 27 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

b. Impose reasonable limitations on the time for public testimony, and to restrict
irrelevant or repetitive testimony and presentations;

c. Prohibit persons from being disorderly, abusive, or disruptive of the orderly
conduct of the hearing

d. Prohibit persons from testifying without first receiving recognition and stating
their full name and address;

e. Prohibit persons from presenting irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious
testimony;

. Prohibit audience demonstrations such as applause, cheering, and display of
signs or other conduct disruptive of the hearing. Any such conduct may be cause
for immediate suspension or termination of the hearing.

2. Order of procedure. Unless otherwise specified, the Commission or the City Council, in
the conduct of hearings, shall:

a. At the commencement of the hearing, announce the nature and purpose of the
hearing and summarize the rules for conducting the hearing;

b. Request the Community Development Director to present the introductory
report of the Director;

c. Allow members of the public to speak about the proposal and to submit relevant
documents.

3. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Commission or City Council may, at its sole
discretion, continue the hearing or leave the record open for a time during which any
person may submit additional documents or written evidence or testimony.

F. Recommendation by Commission.

1. At the conclusion of a hearing by the Planning Commission, and following any
continuances or period in which the record remains open, the Commission may: make
a decision recommending approval or disapproval of the proposal and transmit such
recommendation to the City Council; or may recommend modification or approval with
conditions;, or may take the matter under advisement. If the Commission’s
recommendation has not been received by the City Council prior to the expiration of
60 days after the conclusion of the Commission’s initial hearing, the City Council may
consider the proposal without recommendation of the Commission thereon.

2. The recommendation of the Commission shall be supported by written Findings and
Conclusions. In addition to any other substantive criteria that may be deemed to apply,
all legislative action proposals shall be analyzed for consistency with the policies of the
Plan, Statewide Planning Goals, and other provisions of this Code. All actions taken by
the Commission in adopting Findings and Conclusions shall be made a part of the
record.

G. Consideration by City Council.

1. Upon receiving the Planning Commission's recommendation, or upon the expiration of
the 60-day period abovementioned, the City Council shall hold a public hearing after
providing notice to all established parties. The same rules of procedure which applied
to the hearing by the Commission shall apply to the hearing by the City Council. The
City Council may approve or disapprove the proposal or modify it or grant approval
subject to conditions. For all cases, the City Council shall make written Findings and
Conclusions, addressing the criteria mentioned in Subparagraph 12.10.020(F)(2)
above or incorporating the Findings and Conclusions of the Commission regarding such
criteria. The City Council may remand the matter to the Planning Commission if it
deems it helpful to obtain further consideration or recommendations from the
Commission on the matter.

2. Upon adoption or amendment of any ordinance or regulation to which ORS 92.044 or
92.046 applies, the City Council shall comply with ORS 92.048, including the
requirement of filing with the recording officer of the County.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 28 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

3. The Director shall send notice of any legislative action proposal to the State as required
under ORS 197.610 and, upon adoption, as required under ORS 197.615.

H. Conflicts of interest. Subsection 12.10.010(U) of this Code shall be applicable to
proceedings to consider legislative action proposals under this Section, except where the
context otherwise indicates, and except that there shall be no prohibition against or
requirement for disclosure of ex parte contacts.

Finding: The City understands and will adhere to the hearing procedures described, and understands
and acknowledges that a recommendation will be made by the Planning Commission, which
will be forwarded to City Council for final consideration and to make a decision.

1. Zoning text amendments. It may be necessary from time to time to amend the text of this
Code in order to conform to the Comprehensive Plan, or to meet other changes in
circumstances and conditions. An amendment to the text of this Code is, as is original
zoning, a legislative act solely within the authority of the City Council and shall be
processed pursuant to this Section.

Finding: No zoning text amendment is proposed with this application; therefore this standard is not
applicable.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 29 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 8. Expansion Area Current Zoning and Surrounding Property Zoning (County)

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 30 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 9. Future Zoning Designation

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 31 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Annexation Criteria
The applicable approval criteria for the subject annexation is contained within the following:

STATE REQUIREMENTS
(A) ORS 222.125, “"Annexation by consent of all owners of land and majority of electors” where
the following criteria must be met:

The legislative body of a city need not call or hold an election in the city or in any
contiguous territory proposed to be annexed or hold the hearing otherwise required under
ORS 222.120 (Procedure for annexation without election) when all of the owners of land
in that territory and not less than 50 percent of the electors, if any, residing in the territory
consent in writing to the annexation of the land in the territory and file a statement of
their consent with the legislative body. Upon receiving written consent to annexation by
owners and electors under this section, the legislative body of the city, by resolution or
ordinance, may set the final boundaries of the area to be annexed by a legal description
and proclaim the annexation.

Finding: The subject site (49.92 acre portion of Sunshine Park) is contiguous to the city limits of
Roseburg and is under the ownership of the City of Roseburg. The Applicant has provided
written consent and has applied for the annexation of forms provided by the City for the
subject site to be annexed into the City. This criterion is met.

CITY REQUIREMENTS

(A) Pursuant to City of Roseburg Resolution 2006-04, “Section B. Annexation Policies”, the following
policies must be adhered to:

1. Annexation Encouraged. Over time, the City of Roseburg shall be the primary provider
of municipal water service and other urban services within the UGB, provided the City
can offer these services in an efficient and cost-effective manner. Annexation to the
City should be encouraged:

a. For unincorporated areas that are now receiving some City services, are urban
in character, or are logically served by the City because of geographic factors
such as drainage basins, boundaries, or environmental constraints,

Finding: The subject site proposed for annexation is currently receiving many services that other
properties inside the City would be offered. This demonstrates that the Park is urban in
character, and that the City and other organizations and companies can and will continue to
offer these urban-level services in an efficient and cost-effective manner after the subject
site is annexed into the City. The following urban services are provided to the park:

o Water services are available at the park that are owned and operated by the City of
Roseburg.

e Sewer services are provided to the park that are owned and operated by the
Roseburg Urban Sanitary Authority (RUSA). RUSA also serves the surrounding
properties and many of the properties inside the UGB.

e Stormwater systems are owned and operated by the City of Roseburg. The storm
system from the park drains into a natural drainage that flows into ODOT right-of-
way along Highway 138E.

e Pacific Power serves the subject site and the surrounding properties.

e The subject site located within the City limits is served by the City of Roseburg Fire
Department and Police Department. The areas of the park that are outside of the
City limits are served by Douglas County Sheriff's Department and Central Douglas

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 32 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Fire and Rescue. Annexing the subject site into the City would make for more
organized jurisdictional emergency response services to serve the park.

e Regular maintenance is performed at the park facilities by City of Roseburg Parks
Department staff on a routine basis. This includes facilities maintenance, janitorial
services, and landscaping.

e Trash and Recycling services are provided to the site by Roseburg Disposal.

Other urban services currently provided to the park include the Sunshine Park Route operated
by Umpqua Public Transportation District, which connects the Washington Avenue and Rose
Street Connection Centers and Sunshine Park up to four trips a day, Monday through Friday.

The subject site is currently being operated as a City Park with all of the urban services
expected of a city park. This demonstrates that the site is urban in character. The Applicant
finds that the annexation shall be encouraged by the City due to the ability to offer the
provision of services in an efficient and cost-effective manner.

b. Where the availability of infrastructure and services allows for the development
of urban densities.

Finding: The subject site is not proposed to be developed at urban densities to support housing or
employment uses. Upon annexation the subject site is proposed to be designated as
Public/Semi-public (PSP) on the Roseburg comprehensive plan map and is proposed to have
the zoning designation of Public Reserve (PR). The availability of infrastructure and services
currently at the subject site will support the level of urban development as required for a city
park. The City finds that the annexation should be encouraged by the decision makers due
to the provision of services being able to be offered in an efficient and cost-effective manner.

2. City Initiated Annexation. If the City initiates an annexation, then the City shall analyze
the financial impacts of the annexation including a calculation of revenues derived
from a proposed annexation and the expenses to provide services in the area to be
annexed. City staff shall also analyze the ability of the City and other urban service
providers to provide urban services to the areas at a level similar to the rest of the City
of Roseburg. Such analysis of impacts and ability to provide City services shall include
at least the following:

a. Financial implications of providing City services to annexed areas at a level that
is approximately consistent with the rest of the City;

Finding: The financial implications for annexing the portions of the subject properties that make up
the 49.92 acre site will be neutral. Because the properties are City owned and have been
since the early 2000’s, there will be no added property tax revenue generated by the
annexation of the properties.

There will be no increase in expenses to provide services to the area to be annexed because
the site has been continuously operated by the City as a city park since the purchase of the
properties. Future development of the site will be for a recreation site that the City has
acquired a grant for. Ongoing maintenance and operations costs for the park are unlikely to
drastically change after annexation. The current level of service provided to the site is
consistent with the level of service of parks provided to the rest of the City. This criteria is
met.

b. The method and timing for a phase-in of City services to the area to be annexed;

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 33 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Finding: City services currently serve the park, therefore there is no method or timing for phasing-in
City services for the area proposed to be annexed. The area proposed to be annexed in will

not require phasing-in of additional City services, therefore the financial impacts of the
annexation are neutral.

c. Consistency with the City’s Capital Improvements Plan and utility master plans
to provide planned improvements;

Finding: This proposal is consistent with the City’s Capital Improvements Plan (CIP), adopted April
2021 which identifies the portions of the subject properties proposed to be annexed as the
Sunshine Park Trail System. The CIP states that “Staff will apply for Recreational Trail
Program grant when available to construct a bike trail system at Sunshine Park.” The CIP
identifies partial funding for the construction of the trails to be funded by the City’s Bike Trail
Fund, which is funded by a portion of state mandated share of gasoline subventions, and
partially funded through a Local Government Grant Program administered by the Oregon
Parks and Recreation Department.

d. Appropriate size of annexation area(s),

Finding: The size of the proposed annexation area, 49.92 acres, is appropriate to the level of service
that the City can provide. The City currently provides a service level to the entirety of the
parcels, which exceeds the 49.92 acres proposed for annexation. The financial impacts of

the proposed annexation would remain neutral given the proposed annexation area.

e. Adequacy of intergovernmental agreements necessary for a logical and smooth
transition in jurisdictional control;

Finding: Adequate intergovernmental agreements are in place for the logical and smooth transition of
the subject site in jurisdictional control. The Douglas County Board of Commissioners has
indicated support for the City to annex the subject site in previous public hearings.

. Property owner and resident support for annexation,

Finding: The City is the sole property owner of the subject site proposed for annexation and has

initiated the annexation process. No residents live on the subject parcels. This standard is
met.

g. Consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan;

Finding: Consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan is addressed further in this proposal
narrative.

h. Compliance with adopted City goals and annexation policies; and,

Finding: This proposal is consistent and in compliance with adopted City goals and annexation policies
as detailed in the City of Roseburg Comprehensive Plan, and by the City of Roseburg
Resolution 2006-04, Annexation Policy as demonstrated in this proposal.

i. Compliance with state law.

Finding: This proposal for annexation is in compliance with state law.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 34 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

3. Full-Range of City Services in Timely Manner. The City shall not initiate annexation
proceedings on any property if it cannot provide a full range of City services within
approximately a three-year period of time. A full range of City services means a level
of urban services approximately similar to that enjoyed by residents currently living in
the City of Roseburg.

Finding: As discussed in the above finding in response to Annexation Policy 1.a., the subject site is
already provided with a full range of City Services. The level of urban services is
approximately similar to that enjoyed by residents currently living in the City of Roseburg.
This standard is met.

4. Preference for Annexation Areas. Highest preference for annexation shall be given to
those areas that best meet annexation policies and where revenues derived from the
annexed areas exceed City expenses. Lowest preference shall be given to those
annexation requests that exhibit a negative financial situation for the City of Roseburg
or only minimally meet City annexation policies. Fiscal impacts are only one of many
criteria to be evaluated, and must be balanced with other annexation policies and
goals.

Finding: The City finds that this annexation area proposal meets all of the annexation policies and
that the revenues derived from the annexed areas will result in a net neutral financial
situation for the City, as discussed above in the response to Annexation Policy 2.a. The City
finds that this proposed annexation shall be given the highest preference for annexation into
the City. This standard is met.

5. Unincorporated Islands. Property that is currently surrounded by land within the City
limits (unincorporated islands) shall be discouraged. As soon as practical, the City shall
initiate annexation proceedings for such islands. The annexations may be initiated at
the request of the Community Development Department, Planning Commission or the
City Council. A public hearing shall be held by the City Council prior to the Council’s
adoption of an ordinance for annexation of an unincorporated island. Prior to the day
of the hearing, the Council will publish notice of the hearing once each week for two
successive weeks, and shall cause notices of the hearing to be posted in four public
places in the city for a like period. Notification shall be mailed to owners of property
within the area proposed for annexation no later than twenty (20) days prior to the
public hearing.

Finding: The subject site proposed for annexation is not considered an unincorporated island,
therefore this policy is not applicable.

6. Properties Now Served by Municipal Water But Located Outside Existing City Limits.
Property owners now receiving municipal water service from the City of Roseburg are
encouraged to initiate annexation proceedings on their property consistent with these
policies.

Finding: The subject site proposed for annexation is currently served by municipal water or can be
served by municipal water service, and is located outside of existing city limits. The City is
the property owner and is initiating annexation proceedings on the site consistent with this

policy.
7. New Consent to Annexation Agreements Prohibited. After Council adoption of a change

to Roseburg Municipal Code 5.04.060, no new municipal water service shall be
provided unless the property is annexed to the City of Roseburg.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 35 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Finding: The City has initiated this annexation proposal to facilitate planned development of park
facilities. The proposal is consistent with this policy.

(B) Pursuant to City of Roseburg Resolution 2006-04, “Section C. City Administration of
Annexations”, the City will process applications for annexation using the following policies:

1. Appropriate zoning districts should be designated for property in an annexation
proposal and should be guided by the adopted comprehensive plan land use
designations.

Finding: The City proposes the city zoning designation Public Reserve (PR), which is guided by the
proposed comprehensive land use designation of Public/Semi-public (PSP) on the Roseburg
comprehensive plan map as proposed in this concurrent Comprehensive Plan Map
Amendment application proposal. This criteria is met.

2. Development proposals associated with annexation proposals should require separate
review from the annexations.

Finding: A future development proposal to construct public trail facilities in the park will be reviewed
through a separate review from this proposed annexation of the subject site. This criteria is
met.

3. Larger annexations will be encouraged, when appropriate, in order to realize
efficiencies in the use of City resources.

Finding: The City finds that this annexation should be encouraged in order to realize the efficiency of
the use of City resources, and to have the entirety of the park that the City owns and operates
inside the City limits. This criteria is met.

4. The City should ensure that property owners and residents in and around the affected
area(s) are fully informed of the obligations and requirements that may be imposed
upon them as a result of annexation. The City should respond to community initiatives
and actively assist owners and residents with initiating and completing the annexation
process.

Finding: As part of the public input process for this proposal, the city has scheduled and held a series
of public hearings and provided notice to fully inform property owners and residents around
the affected area. This criteria is met.

5. The City should take proactive action to help property owners and residents
understand and respond to the City's initiation of annexation proceedings that affect
them. City staff should consider using survey instruments and other methods to gauge
the level of support for annexation in a particular unincorporated area.

Finding: The history and background of the subject site, and previous public testimony and input from
surrounding property owners and residents indicate that those owners and residents
understand the City’s initiation of annexation of the subject site, and how that may affect
them. In addition to this background, the City has reached out to surrounding property
owners and residents to ensure that property owners and residents understand and have the
opportunity to respond to the City's initiation of annexation proceedings on the subject site.
This criteria is met.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 36 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

6. So long as consistent with state law, City staff are encouraged to be creative in
providing incentives and inducements to unincorporated areas to encourage them to
be annexed. Such incentives and inducements may include a phase-in of property taxes
paid. This incentive is appropriate as there normally is a phase-in of City services to
the area annexed. The City Council may, at the time of approval of the annexation,
choose to phase-in the City share of property taxes over a three-year period. The out-
of-city water fee would also be eliminated through annexation.

Finding:

The City understands that this is an option, but does not request from the decision makers
any incentives and inducements that may encourage annexation of the subject site at this
time, therefore this criteria is not applicable.

(C) Pursuant to City of Roseburg Resolution 2006-04, “Section D. Annexation Boundaries”, as the City
discusses annexation with property owners and as the City reviews annexation requests, the issue of
where to establish the annexation boundary will be guided by the following policies:

1. Seek boundaries that readily define City and county jurisdiction and correct any
existing inconsistencies of the City's borders with future annexation proposals.

Finding:

This proposal will correct an existing inconsistency with the City’s boarder by annexing land
that is included in an existing city park that is roughly half-inside the city limits and roughly
half-outside the city limits. The proposed area of annexation will match the proposed UGB
expansion boundary line, creating a boundary line for the City and UGB that is the same.
This criteria is met.

2. The proposed annexation boundary should be defined by the following characteristics:

Finding:

Finding:

Finding:

Finding:

a. annexation of territory that is adjacent to the existing City limits; in general,
the more land adjacent to the City, the more favorable the annexation,

The subject site proposed for annexation is entirely adjacent to the existing city limits. This
criteria is met.

b. inclusion of unincorporated islands and peninsulas;
The subject site proposed for annexation is not considered an unincorporated island, or
peninsula, and an annexation would not result in an unincorporated island and/or peninsula.

This criteria is met.

c. use of boundaries that are readily identifiable in the field, such as waterways,
ridges, park property, the entire road right-of-way, and railroad right-of-way,

The proposed boundary for the annexation is defined by the proposed UGB expansion line,
which is consistent with the intent of this criteria. This criteria is met.

d. inclusion/exclusion of an entire neighborhood, rather than dividing portions of
the neighborhood between City and county jurisdictions, and

The proposed annexation would not result in the division of a portion of a neighborhood
between the City and county jurisdictions. This criteria is met.

e. natural corridors should be identified and included as greenbelts or community
separators between the City and adjacent jurisdictions.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 37 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Finding: No natural corridors existing on the subject site that could be identified and included as a
potential greenbelt or community separator between the City and adjacent jurisdictions. This
criteria is met.

3. Existing land uses, development, and redevelopment potential should be considered
when evaluating a proposed annexation.

Finding: The existing land use as a park, and proposed development of the site for more park facilities
will be made possible by this annexation and the transfer of jurisdictional review to the City.
This criteria is met.

4. Annexation proposals should include areas that allow for the control over land uses
along major entrance corridors to the City.

Finding: The proposed site does not include land that would allow for control over land uses along
major entrance corridors to the City, therefore this criteria is not applicable.

(D) Pursuant to City of Roseburg Resolution 2006-04, “Section E. Annexation and Intergovernmental
Relations”, in order to maintain a quality relationship with [their] partners as annexation occurs, the
City should:

1. Actively involve Douglas County staff and elected officials as annexation issues arise.

2. Promote a regional approach for development review through the use of
intergovernmental agreements to ensure that Douglas County land development
policies are consistent with the City of Roseburg Comprehensive Plan policies or other
City development standards.

3. Coordinate Jong-range planning and the development of capital improvement
programs for transportation, storm water, water services, and other utilities with
adjacent jurisdictions, special districts, and Douglas County.

4. As the City considers annexation proposals, evaluate natural resources in and around
the area of the proposed annexation and consider whether inclusion of those natural
resources within the City’s boundaries could be beneficial for land use planning and/or
conservation of natural resources.

5. Pursue Intergovernmental agreements with other urban service providers, consistent
with ORS 195.060 through 195.085 (okay) [sic], to guide the transition from rural to
urban levels of service. Discussions should be held with Douglas County, Douglas
County Rural Fire District #2, Roseburg Urban Sanitary Authority, the Dixonville Water
Association, and the Umpqua Basin Water Association.

Finding: The concurrent applications for a UGB expansion, comprehensive map amendment,
annexation, and zone change have included the Douglas County staff and elected officials so
that any annexation issues that arise can be jointly discussed. The City has adhered to the
standards and guidelines of this section. This criteria is met.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 38 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Zone Change Criteria

Once designated with the Comprehensive Plan Map designation of Public/Semi-public (PSP), the City will
apply the zoning designation of Public Reserve (PR). The future zoning map designation is demonstrated
in Figure 10. The applicable approval criteria for the proposed Zone Change application is contained within
the following:

12.10.040 ZONE CHANGE

A. Purpose. This Section provides the criteria for amending the boundaries of any Zoning
District delineated on the official zoning map. Zoning shall be consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan and maintain the general purpose of this Code and specific purpose
of the applicable zone classification. Application of Overlay Districts to any property
requires a zone change application per Subsection 12.10.010(G) of this Code.

Finding:

This proposal includes an application for a zone change for the subject site. The proposal is
to change the existing zoning from Douglas County Forest Grazing (FG) zoning to City of
Roseburg Public Reserve (PR) zoning. The proposed PR zoning will match the proposed
comprehensive plan map designation of Public/Semi-public (PSP). Upon annexation, the City
will apply the zoning designation to match that of the existing portions of the park.

B. Notice requirements for mobile home parks. If an application would change the zone of
property which includes all or part of a mobile home park, written notice shall also be given
by first class mail to each existing mailing address for tenants of the mobile home park at
least 20 days but not more than 40 days before the date of the first hearing on the
application. The Director may require the applicant for such a zone change to pay the cost
of such notice. Procedure shall otherwise be followed subject to Subsection 12.10.010(T)
of this Code.

Finding:

No area in this proposal would change the zone of property which includes all or part of a
mobile home park, therefore this criteria is not applicable.

C. Ciriteria for zone change. The Approving Authority may grant a zone change only if the
following circumstances are found to exist:
1. The rezoning will conform to the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan, including
the land use map and written policies.

Finding:

Upon approval of this proposal, the subject site will be located within the Roseburg Urban
Growth Boundary in an area that was previously designed as Douglas County Forest Grazing
(FG) zoning. This proposal includes a comprehensive plan map amendment to apply the
Roseburg comprehensive plan map designation of Public/Semi-public (PSP) to the subject
site. With the PSP designation applied, the subject site will then be annexed into the City
limits, and the appropriate zoning of PR will be applied. This process will happen concurrently,
and correct the inconsistencies that currently exist with the UGB, the existing land use, and
the jurisdictional overlap. The proposed PR zone, with the amendment of the Comprehensive
Plan Map to PSP will conform to the Comprehensive Plan applicable written policies. Greater
detail to how these concurrent applications comply with the Roseburg Urban Area
Comprehensive plan policies is outlined in Chapter 5 of this proposal. This criteria is met.

2. The site is suitable to the proposed zone with respect to the public health, safety, and
welfare of the surrounding area.

Finding:

The proposal to rezone the site to Public Reserve (PR) is suitable for the subject site. All
utilities that would be required for a new park are immediately available to the subject site.
Other urban level services are already, or can feasibly be made available to the subject site.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 39 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

The topography of the land is predominantly sloping, with slopes over 10% making up
approximately 72% of the subject site. At the time of development, any proposals will be
reviewed by the City’s applicable review criteria to ensure the development meets appropriate
fire and health and safety criteria. This criteria is met.

3. The rezone s consistent with the safety and performance measures of the
transportation system.

Finding: The subject site has frontage on North Umpqua Highway and Sunshine Road and will be
accessed from Sunshine Road. There is an existing parking lot on the site that takes access
from Sunshine Road. The Douglas County Transportation System Plan (2001) classifies
Sunshine Road as a Minor Collector, and the road is improved to current roadway standards
with bicycle lane and sidewalk facilities on either side of the right-of-way. When a
development application is submitted, the site will be reviewed by City staff to determine if
the site meets the access standards determined by the Transportation System Plan and the
Title 12 Land Use and Development Regulations. This criteria is met.

D. Zone change—Conditions of approval. Reasonable conditions may be imposed, as are
necessary to ensure the compatibility of a zone change to surrounding uses and as are
necessary to fulfill the general and specific purposes of this Code. Such conditions may
include, but are not limited to, the following:

Special yards and spaces;

Fences and walls;

Special parking and/or loading provisions;

Street dedication and improvements or traffic control devices or facilities or bonds or

other monetary contributions in lieu of improvements;

Control of points of vehicular ingress and egress;

Special provisions for signs,

Lighting, landscaping, and maintenance of grounds;

8. Control of noise, vibration, odors, or other similar nuisances.

E. Grant of authority for zone change.

1. The City Council shall have the authority to order a change in the official map to
effectuate the rezoning of property as provided by the provisions of this Code.

2. The City Council shall order a change in the official map within 10 days of the date the
decision becomes final.

AGWNK

NO O

Finding: The City understands and acknowledges that conditions of approval may be imposed on this
application, and that the City Council has the authority to order a change in the official zoning
map.

F. Zoning of annexed areas. Areas annexed to the City shall retain their existing zoning
classifications until they are rezoned by the City. The City Council may rezone such area(s)
to City zoning classification(s) concurrent with the effective date of the annexation(s). At
the option of the City Council such rezoning may be heard by the Planning Commission
pursuant to Subsection 12.10.010(T) of this Code, or the choice of zoning classification(s)
for such area(s) may be done as legislative act(s) within the authority of the City Council
pursuant to Section 12.10.020 of this Code. In either event, the City Council may seek
recommendations from the Commission regarding such zoning classifications. Such
classifications shall conform to the criteria set forth in Subsection 12.10.040(A) of this
Code, conditions may be imposed as provided in Subsection 12.10.040(D), and the official
map shall be changed as provided in Subsection 12.10.040(E) of this Code.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 40 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Finding: This application includes an annexation and zone change concurrent with the effective date
of the annexation of the subject site. The City is prepared to hold a joint public hearing with
the City and County Planning Commissions for this UGB expansion, Comprehensive Plan Map
Amendment, Annexation, and Zone Change applications, who will forward a recommendation
to City Council and the Board of County Commissioners for their decision.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 41 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 10. Future Comprehensive Plan Designation

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 42 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Chapter 4 - Congistency with Statewide Flanning
Coals

Goal 1: Citizen Involvement
To develop a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity for citizens to be
involved in all phases of the planning process.

Finding: The intent of Goal 1 is to ensure that citizens have meaningful opportunities to participate in land
use planning decisions. The City has an acknowledged Citizen Involvement Program, through which
opportunities are provided for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process. Nothing in this
land use proposal amends or affects that program.

Goal 1 has five stated objectives that are relevant to the process for these concurrent applications:

e Citizen Involvement — To provide for widespread citizen involvement.

¢ Communication — To ensure effective two-way communication with citizens.

e Citizen Influence — To provide the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the
planning process.

e Technical Information — To ensure that technical information is available in an understandable
form.

o Feedback Mechanisms — To ensure that citizens will receive a response from policy-makers.

In relation to Goal 1, the City finds that it utilized its acknowledged citizen involvement program to engage
in an extensive public outreach effort regarding the proposed UGB expansion. Before the City began to
pursue an urban growth boundary expansion, the Parks and Recreation Department engaged citizens with
a public community meeting to discuss the proposed trail system expansion at Sunshine Park in February
of 2020. This meeting allowed interested citizens to communicate directly with City staff, to ask questions,
and to express concerns about the proposal.

Following this engagement, the City submitted a conditional use permit (CUP) application with the Douglas
County Planning Department, as the affected portion of the Sunshine Parks property sat outside the UGB
and was previously under county jurisdiction. This application was subsequently withdrawn, and a new CUP
application was submitted in 2022. As a result, the City coordinated with the County Department who
effectively issued a public notice for comment to the surrounding land owners. This notice gave surrounding
neighbors the opportunity to send comments about the proposed CUP. The comments received from the
neighboring residents gave the City insight on concerns regarding land use compatibility, fire risk, and
visitor access. The City reviewed these comments and sent a response to the County to address the
concerns, which satisfies the statewide objective for feedback mechanisms. The County moved forward
with a public hearing for the Conditional Use Permit, and the permit was ultimately denied by the Douglas
County Board of Commissioners on remand from LUBA.

The City continues its citizen engagement efforts for this proposal for the UGB expansion, comprehensive
plan map amendment, annexation, and zone change. This proposal will now seek approval through the
City’s legislative decision-making process rather than a quasi-judicial process. The City of Roseburg Planning
Commission and Douglas County Planning Commission will hold public hearings for the proposal and provide
opportunities for public comment. Prior to the UGB expansion application being officially submitted, a
meeting with surrounding property owners was held about the new circumstances surrounding the land
use actions in order to provide opportunities for the public to communicate with City staff and discuss
possible concerns.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 43 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

After recommendations have been made by the respective planning commissions, the City Council and
County Board of Commissioners will hold public hearings for their respective review portions of the proposal
and provide opportunities for public comment. The timeline of citizen involvement is outlined in this table:

Activity Date Notes
Sunshine Park Trails System press 1/31/2020 | The City posts notice inviting all residents to attend
release a community meeting about a proposed trail system
in Sunshine Park to the city website, social media,
and news outlets.
Community Meeting #1 2/12/2020 | City Parks & Recreation hosts a public meeting at
the Roseburg Public Library at 6pm to present the
Sunshine Trails designs and solicit citizen feedback.
Mail notice of land use action for 10/21/2020 | The City requests a CUP for a proposed trail system,
Douglas County Conditional Use - Douglas County Planning Department sends a
Permit 11/4/2020 | notice to surrounding land owners for comment.
Mail notice of withdrawal for 1/15/2021 | Douglas County Planning Department sends a
Douglas County Conditional Use second notice to neighboring landowners to inform
Permit them of the City withdrawing the CUP application.
Mail notice of land use action for 1/19/2023 | The City requests a CUP for a proposed trail system,
Douglas County Conditional Use Douglas County Planning Department sends notice
Permit to surrounding land owners for comment and notice
of a Planning Commission Hearing. The first of two
Planning Commission Hearings is held.
Mail notice of land use action for 4/17/2023 | After the CUP is approved by Planning Commission,
Douglas County Conditional Use notice is sent to surrounding land owners for a
Permit Public Hearing before the Douglas County Board of
Commissioners where the application is denied.
Neighboring Property Owners 11/7/2024 | The City hosts a meeting to present the UGB
Meeting Expansion Proposal to the neighbors immediately
adjacent to the Sunshine Park property.
Mail notice of land use action for TENTATIVE | A notice will be sent for these concurrent
Douglas County UGB Expansion and applications to be brought before a joint Planning
Comprehensive Plan Map Commission public hearing for Douglas County and
Amendment the City. A second notice will be sent for the
Douglas County Board of Commissioners public
hearing.
Mail notice of land use action for TENTATIVE | A notice will be sent for these concurrent
City of Roseburg UGB, applications to be brought before a joint Planning
Comprehensive Plan Map Commission public hearing for Douglas County and
Amendment, Annexation, Zone the City. A second notice will be sent for the City
Change Council public hearing.

The City finds that Goal 1 has been properly addressed.

Goal 2: Land Use Planning

To establish a land use planning process and policy frammework as a basis for all decision and
actions related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual base for such decisions and
actions.

Finding: Goal 2 states that land use decisions must be made in accordance with adopted comprehensive
plans and implementation ordinances. The Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan (“the Comprehensive
Plan”) is the comprehensive plan required by this goal, and the Land Use and Development Regulation

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 44 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

section of the Roseburg Municipal Code is the required implementation measure. Comprehensive plans, as
defined by ORS 197.015(5) must be coordinated with the affected government units, in this case Douglas
County and the State of Oregon. This coordination occurred during the process to acknowledge the plan in
1981. Since then, the City Council has approved amendments to the Comprehensive Plan through the
adoption of additional long range planning documents that act as an appendage to the original
Comprehensive Plan and serve as supporting documents.

The intent of the Comprehensive Plan is to provide a guiding framework and establish a means for
consistent, coordinated land use planning decisions across public agencies. It guides the development of
public resources and implementation of long-range planning activities carried out by local government. It
is designed to provide the public with guidelines for individual planning decisions. The Comprehensive Plan
should serve as the prevailing policy document for the City.

Additional long range plans, adopted through the public process, serving as an appendage to the
Comprehensive Plan help to refine the broad goals, objectives, and policies identified within the
Comprehensive Plan. These addendums provide updated inventories, factual information applicable to
statewide planning goals, and specific courses of action involving the implementation of each element. In
some cases, these plans are used to replace existing elements within the Comprehensive Plan, such as the
Roseburg Transportation System Plan (TSP), adopted in 2006 and updated in 2019, which now acts as the
updated Transportation Element.

In other cases, the Comprehensive Plan authorizes a separate plan to take the generalized information
within the Comprehensive Plan and establish refined standards and guidelines to carry out the Element’s
goals, policies, and standards. This is stated within the Parks and Recreation Element in the Comprehensive
Plan:

"... it [s important to understand that the Park and Recreation Element as presented, is not
intended to provide definitive information regarding area recreation needs, nor Is it within
the scope of this element to establish a realistic framework for acquisition and development
of parks and facilities. Rather, it is the intent of this element to stay within the range of
currently available information.

This element is predicated on the assumption that the City will develop a Parks and
Recreation Master Plan. Such a Master Plan will go far beyond the scope of this generalized
parks and recreation element, and will establish specific standards to more accurately
assess the urban area's park and recreation needs.

The Master Plan will be based on community needs, providing guidelines for acquisition
and development along with practical planning alternatives. The goals and policies
contained in this element are of a general nature and will serve as the basis for specific
policies to be contained in the Master Plan. It is anticjpated that the Master Plan will provide
a capital improvement program consistent with the financial resources of the community
and provide specific area and facility recommendations to ensure that the park and
recreation needs of the urban area are met, as well as guiding schematic design of specific
projects.

The objectives of the proposed Master Plan will largely be accomplished through the use
of inventories of current community programs and facilities, community meetings and
forums, and a demand survey and computer analysis. The Master Plan will incorporate
relevant state goals into its framework, goals and policies.”

As a result, the Comprehensive Plan authorizes the creation and use of a Parks Master Plan for the
assessment, development, and implementation of specific parks facilities based on the current recreational

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 45 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

needs of the community. The current Comprehensive Parks Master Plan, adopted on April 28%", 2009,
through Resolution No. 2008-6, is the main factual base for this proposal. The Comprehensive Parks Master
Plan has a 20 year planning period, applicable from 2008 to 2028. City Parks and Recreation is currently
exploring funding options to update the Parks Master Plan. This update will occur after the UGB expansion
and related comprehensive plan map amendment, annexation, and zone change applications.

Since this proposal will amend the Roseburg Urban Growth Boundary, the adoption proceeding will be
conducted in a manner consistent with the requirements of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Roseburg Land
Use and Development Regulations, the Douglas County Comprehensive Plan, the Roseburg Douglas County
Urban Growth Management Agreement, and applicable state law and administrative rules.

As part of that proceeding, there shall be opportunities for affected governmental units and citizens to
review and comment. All pertinent documentation has been made available to the affected parties, and
active participation is made available through public hearings. In an effort to be consistent across
governmental bodies, both the Roseburg City Council and Douglas County Board of Commissioners must
vote to adopt the proposal. Any appeal of the decision will go through the State Land Use Board of Appeals.

The City finds that Goal 2 has been properly addressed.

Goal 3: Agricultural Lands

To preserve and maintain agricultural lands.

Pursuant to OAR 660-024-0020(b), Goal 3 is not applicable. See the Study Area section and Goal 14
Boundary Location Factors section for analysis of Soil Capability Class and impacts to surrounding
agricultural uses and activities.

Goal 4: Forest Lands

To conserve forest lands by maintaining the forest land base and to protect the state's forest
economy by making possible economically efficient forest practices that assure the continuous
growing and harvesting of forest tree species as the leading use on forest land consistent with
sound management of soil, air, water, and fish and wildlife resources and to provide for
recreational opportunities and agriculture.

Pursuant to OAR 660-024-0020(b), Goal 4 is not applicable. See the Goal 14 Boundary Location Factors
section for analysis of impacts to surrounding forest related uses and activities.

Goal 5: Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas and Natural Resources
To protect natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas and open spaces.

Finding: Goal 5 requires local governments to inventory the following resources: riparian corridors,
wetlands, wildlife habitats, federal wild and scenic rivers, state scenic waterways, groundwater resources,
approved Oregon recreation trails, natural areas, wilderness area, mineral and aggregate resources, energy
sources and cultural areas. Local governments are also encouraged to inventory the following resources:
historic resources, open space, and scenic views and sites. The intent of the goal is to apply protections to
these resources.

The City has a number of Goal 5 protections already in place, such as the Riparian Habitat Protection
Overlay and regulations for the floodplain and wetlands. The proposed amendment to the UGB will allow
for Roseburg’s natural resource protection regulations to become effective. Additionally, it is a goal of the
Comprehensive Parks Master Plan to promote the natural character of Roseburg by providing publicly
accessible natural areas that take full advantage of its waterways, as well as the diversity of topography
and habitat within the city. Natural area sites are added to the system based on determining factors

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 46 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

including natural resource value, ability to maintain natural wildlife corridors, and ability to preserve the
scenic value of viewsheds and crests. The Comprehensive Parks Master Plan also contains guidelines for
locating trails in potentially sensitive areas to balance the benefits of public access to natural areas with
the impacts of access. Precautions are taken to create buffers between trail users and sensitive habitats.

Sunshine Park has wetlands sites that the City has been aware of since prior to the properties acquisition,
but they are not listed in the City’s or Douglas County’s Goal 5 inventories for significant wetlands. The
National Wetlands Inventory identifies areas of freshwater emergent wetlands, freshwater forested/shrub
wetlands, and a riverine. The Statewide Wetlands Inventory identify areas of Hydric Soils on portions of
the site that are brought in by the UGB expansion. A site-specific wetlands delineation was conducted
during the first phase of the park’s development in 2000 by Land And Water Environmental Services shown
in Appendix 3 that identified 12.9 acres of wetlands and 3 acres of riparian area. The area was described
as consisting of “a small seasonal creek with a highly impacted riparian zone, with pockets of small, isolated,
and disturbed depressional wetlands which provide very limited function and low value.” This impact is
apparent due to the historical agricultural use and surrounding residential and industrial uses which have
long disturbed and affected it from being a natural riparian area.

The City applied for wetlands permits which allowed for 5.12 acres of fill and 2.25 acres of wetlands
removal, in order to construct 2 baseball fields, 3 softball fields, a parking lot and other parks facilities. The
majority of this development took place within the area of the park already inside the UGB. The northwest
corner of the park, which contains the majority of the parking lot, is currently outside of the UGB and
operates under a county CUP. By bringing this area into the UGB and city limits, along with the undeveloped
acreage of the park to the east, the City will have full jurisdiction of the parks facilities allowing for uniform
management of the current natural resources.

Coordination with DSL to form an updated wetlands mitigation plan will likely be needed if new development
were to occur around existing wetland areas. As seen in Appendix 3, the boundary of the 2000 wetlands
delineation contained some, but not all, of the area affected by this expansion. The proposed plans for
trails expansion on the remaining undeveloped acreage have been designed to avoid the riparian area
along the south boundary of the Sunshine Park property. This area is to be avoided in future development
projects as it provides an obvious and desirable buffer between the parks, trails, and the industrial activity
at the mill site just south of the parcel boundary.

There are no significant inventoried historic resource sites within the proposed expansion area, however a
cemetery borders the south side of the expansion area. The cemetery is fenced and is 1 acre in size. The
City of Roseburg Parks and Recreation Department requested an archeological review from the Oregon
State Historic Preservation Offices (SHPO) to evaluate the Sunshine Park Trails Expansion project. SHPO
determined that based on the proposed project schematics, there were no concerns regarding the
cemetery. Further consultation was recommended with SHPO if a future project were to bring heavy
machinery within 300 feet of the cemetery. The City will monitor activity and consult with SHPO again if
deemed necessary. The City intends to keep a buffer area between future parks facilities and the cemetery
property boundary.

The City finds that Goal 5 is satisfied by complying with applicable natural resource regulations and by
taking steps to mitigate impact of future park trails development.

Goal 6: Air, Water and Land Resource Quality

To maintain and improve the quality of the air, water and land resources of the state.

Finding: Goal 6 requires jurisdictions to have comprehensive plan policies and implementing measures
that are consistent with state and federal regulations for air, water and land resource quality. The City
partakes in activities that minimize, mitigate, or avoid conflicts with Goal 6 such as:

e Implementing the Storm Drainage Master Plan and Comprehensive Plan policies,

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 47 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

e Implementing city water and storm water system development charges (SDCs),

e Enforcement of the Roseburg Municipal Code 5.04.210 in compliance with OAR 330-061-0070 to
protect the City’s water supply and distribution system from contamination or pollution,

e Applying protective regulations through the Riparian Habitat Protection Overlay, Floodplain
Overlay, and Hillside Development Overlay that comply with DEQ and other federal agency
requirements.

The expansion of the UGB and annexation of the 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park will have a positive impact
on Goal 6 resources. The adopted Comprehensive Parks Master Plan emphasizes the importance of
preserving the natural quality of the undeveloped acreage of Sunshine Park, though it states that trails,
viewpoints, and picnic facilities can be added. The annexed land will be used exclusively for parks purposes
and would prohibit the land from being developed in a manner contrary to the Parks Master Plan. There
are currently no plans for major construction beyond the proposed trail system, however future projects
could be identified when the Parks Master Plan is updated. With the inclusion of the undeveloped acreage
into the UGB, the expanded area will be inside RUSA’s sewer service boundary thereby eliminating the
possibility of potential groundwater contamination from on-site septic systems in the future.

The City finds that Goal 6 has been adequately addressed.

Goal 7: Areas Subject To Natural Hazard

To protect people and property from natural hazards.

Finding: Goal 7 requires jurisdictions to inventory natural hazards within their comprehensive plans and
apply appropriate safeguards to avoid or minimize risks to people and property. The City has existing
policies, zoning overlay districts, and development standards to regulate development in areas subject to
natural hazards. These include the Floodplain Overlay (RMC 12.04.090) and Hillside Development Overlay
(RMC 12.04.100).

The Sunshine Park property consists of two south facing hillside knolls, which span the entirety of the
property from east to west. The slope generally ranges from 10-25% with some steep sections greater
than 25%, maxing out at 60% in select spots as demonstrated in Figure 11. Areas that have a slope of
12.01% or greater will have the Hillside Development Overlay applied to them. This overlay puts special
standards on development that help reduce potential risks associated with hillside erosion, sedimentation
on lower slopes, and damage from landslides. There are no historic records of landslides at the site.

Steep slopes preclude the hillside acreage of Sunshine Park from many development options, however they
have the desired topography for a high priority trails project identified in the Parks Master Plan. These slope
angles allow for efficient construction of sustainable recreational trails, with only a small portion of trail
segments requiring stone/aggregate armoring or timber bridges, based upon proposed designs by the hired
trail building consultant. By developing this steep sloped area with recreational trails in lieu of residential,
commercial, or industrial facilities, the possibilities for perilous landslides endangering human life and
property is heavily decreased.

Wildfire risk is another natural hazard that is addressed as part of this proposal. During the previous
conditional use permit process within the County jurisdiction, some neighbors on surrounding properties
expressed concerns that trail development would increase fire risk. When collecting evidence for the public
hearings for the original conditional use permit, the City consulted with the Douglas Forest Protective
Association (DFPA), to determine if new development within the proposed area would increase fire risk.
DFPA determined that non-motorized recreational trails would not increase fire danger in the area, and that
conversely “the trail system could actually be a benefit to suppression efforts”. With the expansion of the
UGB and the annexation of the land into the city limits, the DFPA will not have jurisdiction over the areas
included into the city limits. Updated letters from the Fire Chief at the Roseburg Fire Department and the
Division Chief — Fire Marshall at Central Douglas Fire and Rescue are included with this application in

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 48 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Appendices 4 and 5. Well maintained trails increase access for emergency responders throughout the
property and can potentially slow the spread of a wildfire, as the 3-4 foot wide trails create breaks in the
grasses covering the hillside.

The proposal will improve the efficiency of emergency response to natural hazards. Under current
conditions there is an overlap of emergency services from the City and County which creates a fair amount
of inefficiency and confusion for adjacent property owners. Following a UGB expansion and annexation,
the property would no longer have fire response split between City and County agencies, as fire response
is consolidated under the Roseburg Fire Department within the city limits. The Central Douglas Fire and
Rescue department may still respond to an emergency event if needed because of an existing mutual aid
agreement. The city’s main Fire Station #1 is located approximately 3.8 miles away from Sunshine Park
and the route is connected directly by Diamond Lake Blvd/HWY 138, a main arterial that will allow for quick
emergency response. The City has also acquired an emergency access easement through a property to the
east of the park in the event of a wildfire or other emergency occurring away from the main entrance.

The expansion and annexation will also allow for consistent enforcement of policies that lower wildfire risk.
The City has a No Smoking policy inside the boundary of all public parks (pursuant to RMC 7.03.170),
however the portions of Sunshine Park outside the UGB are technically under the jurisdiction of the Douglas
County Sheriff. By bringing the remaining acreage of Sunshine Park into the UGB & City Limits, the Roseburg
Police Department will have the proper jurisdiction to enforce this code in all areas of the park, along with
other codes pertaining to unauthorized burning (see RMC 7.04.110).

The City finds that Goal 7 has been adequately addressed.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 49 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Figure 11. Expansion Area Slope

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 50 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Goal 8: Recreational Needs

To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and visitors and, where
appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities including destination
resorts.

Finding: By including these 49.92 acres of Sunshine Park into the City’s jurisdiction, the City will have the
ability and authority to provide additional recreational facilities to the City, the region, and the State of
Oregon. The future development of a trail system at Sunshine Park will help to satisfy the recreational
needs of the community and visitors. A new trail system will bring visitors to the area from surrounding
communities providing additional recreational opportunities at a nominal cost.

The full text for Goal 8 specifies the priorities for selecting sites for recreational facilities and opportunities.
For the purpose of this urban growth boundary expansion, the Goal 8 priorities do not supersede the study
area analysis and ranking of priority lands prescribed by OAR 660-024-0067. In addition to the site selection
analysis conducted in Chapter 3 of this report, the City finds that the Sunshine Park site additionally meets
the priorities in Goal 8:

Planning and provision for recreation facilities and opportunities should give priority to areas,
facilities and uses that;

(a) Meet recreational needs requirements for high density population centers: The Parks
Master Plan demonstrates the need for parks facilities on the east side of Roseburg. The expansion
of Sunshine Park is necessary to meet the current and growing needs of the population, specifically
on the east side of the city.

(b) Meet recreational needs of persons of limited mobility and finances: This trails expansion
on the new portion of parks property that will be brought into the City limits will be designed to
have ADA accessible trail sections. Approximately one-half mile of trail sections will be ADA
accessible when the trails are completed. Existing portions of Sunshine Park are already accessible
to persons of limited mobility because the pathways to concession buildings, restrooms, and
bleachers are ADA accessible, and ADA parking is provided in the existing parking area. Additional
accessible trails will give those with limited mobility greater options for recreation at Sunshine Park.
Additionally, public parks in Roseburg are accessible to those with limited finances and there is no
day-use or parking fees. When compared with other sites for trail systems, it is located closest to
members of the community. Transportation time and costs are significantly reduced for those with
limited finances.

(c) Meet recreational needs requirements while providing the maximum conservation of
energy both in the transportation of persons to the facility or area and in the
recreational use itself: The proposed use is hon-motorized and encourages individual passive
recreation, which has positive energy and health consequences. The facility is now located within
the City limits, giving its residents nearby access to a highly desired recreational opportunity (trail
system). Substituting this facility for others means people will drive less, which results in a positive
energy consequence. Additionally, this location also provides access by public transportation, and
eventually with the development of the bike routes plan, there will be multi-use path connections
that will allow for easily accessible, complete multi-modal non-motorized transit options.

(d) Minimize environmental deterioration: Passive recreation combined with an environmentally
sensitive area is a responsible and practical way to bring people to the natural environment while
also protecting it. Through proposed buffers, maintenance, and coordination with respective state
agencies such as DSL, this impact will be minimized. Impact to the natural environment will likely
be lower under the parks management than it would be for a traditional farm use.

(e) Are available to the public at nhominal cost: The trails expansion project has received a
$148,670 matching grant from the State Parks and Recreation Office, which will significantly offset
the public cost of the development. The rest of the project’s funding comes from capital
improvement planning, for which there is a responsible allotment for parks projects.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 51 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

(f) Meet needs of visitors to the state: The 2023 Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation
Plan (SCORP) analysis shows that walking trails are highly demanded across the entire state,
including the Douglas County region. There is a demonstrated regional need for passive recreation
trails. Trails, including mountain biking trails are highly sought after. Mountain biking is a growing
sport, generates revenue, and is a pass time that many visitors and locals participate in.

The City finds that Goal 7 has been adequately addressed.

Goal 9: Economy of the State
To provide adequate opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic activities
vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon's citizens.

Finding: Goal 9 requires jurisdictions to plan for an adequate supply of land for employment uses. The
City is not seeking a UGB expansion for employment land, as a result Goal 9 is found to be not applicable.

Goal 10: Housing

To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state.

Finding: Goal 10 requires jurisdictions to plan for an adequate supply of land for housing needs. The City
is not seeking a UGB expansion for residential land, therefore Goal 10 is found to be not applicable.

Goal 11: Public Facilities and Services
To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and services
to serve as a framework for urban and rural development.

Finding: Goal 11 requires cities to adopt a public facilities plan in order to provide a timely, orderly, and
efficient arrangement of public facilities and services necessary to serve its residents. The City provides its
residents with water service, has established storm water, public parks, and streets systems, and provides
administrative, police, and public safety services. Sanitary sewer services are provided by Roseburg Urban
Sanitary Authority (RUSA) through a special district operating under ORS 450.075. To guide the provision
of public services, the City has a number of adopted public facilities plans that function as support
documents to the Comprehensive Plan. These include:

Water System Master Plan (2008)

Comprehensive Parks Master Plan (2008)

Roseburg Storm Drainage Master Plan (2011)

Capital Improvement Plan (2018-2023)

Transportation System Plan (2019)

Additionally, RUSA has a Wastewater Collection System Master Plan (2003) that plans for improvements to
their system through the year 2055.

The public utilities that serve the existing park will be maintained or extended as necessary to serve the
portion of Sunshine Park that is brought into the city limits. Because the City is planning to develop a trail
system on the park property, there will be no extension of water or sanitary sewer systems to the portions
of the park being brought into the City. Capital improvement projects for facilities will be determined in
future stages, following the annexation and development of the park. The City publishes a 5-year capital
improvement plan that gets reviewed at least every two years to reflect the needs of the community and
changes in resources for financing capital projects.

The City finds that Goal 11 has been adequately addressed.

Goal 12: Transportation

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 52 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic transportation system.

Finding: Goal 12 encourages the provision of a safe, convenient and economic transportation system. This
goal also implements provisions of other statewide planning goals related to transportation planning in
order to plan and develop transportation facilities and services in coordination with urban and rural
development (OAR 660-012-0060(1)). For the purposes of the proposed amendments, the Transportation
Planning Rule (TPR) requires additional analysis if the proposed amendments would significantly affect an
existing or planned transportation facility.

Based on the criteria found in OAR 660-012-0060(1)(a)—(c), the City determines that the UGB expansion
would not significantly affect a transportation facility or require further mitigation. This determination is
based on the guidance of the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and the expected levels of
travel and access to the expansion area.

The Douglas County Transportation System Plan (2022) classifies Sunshine Road as a Minor Collector from
Hwy 138 to end. County road classification standards state that minor collectors are intended to distribute
local traffic and in rural places are meant to help provide connections to residential areas and resource
areas. Sunshine Road is classified as a Minor Collector from the highway to the proposed boundary of the
UGB. The City shared details of the proposal with ODOT because Sunshine Park abuts a state highway.
ODOT officials indicated in an email on 10/18/2022 that they did not have issues or concerns with the
proposal, and that the UGB expansion would not significantly affect their facilities (Appendix 6).

OAR 660-012-0060 states that a plan or land use regulation amendment significantly affects a
transportation facility if it would:
(a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility (exclusive
of correction of map errors in an adopted plan);
(b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system, or
(c) Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection based on
projected conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted TSP. As
part of evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic profected to be generated within the
area of the amendment may be reduced if the amendment includes an enforceable, ongoing
requirement that would demonstrably limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to,
transportation demand management. This reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the
significant effect of the amendment.
(A) Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional classification
of an existing or planned transportation facility;
(B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such that it
would not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan;
or
(C) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is
otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or
comprehensive plan.

The City finds that the proposed expansion area and inclusion into the City will not significantly affect the
transportation facilities, as the park is already in operation and existing. This change in boundary lines will
not considerably affect the amount of park users. Future development of the park areas with trails will
follow the City’s land use review processes.

The City finds that Goal 12 has been adequately addressed.

Goal 13: Energy Conservation
Land and uses developed on the land shall be managed and controlled so as to maximize the
conservation of all forms of energy, based upon sound economic principles.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 53 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Finding: The proposal will have a net neutral effect on energy because the UGB expansion area and
annexation of the site are already owned and operated by the City of Roseburg.

The City finds that Goal 13 has been adequately addressed.

Goal 14: Urbanization

To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to accommodate
urban population and urban employment inside urban growth boundaries, to ensure efficient
use of land, and to provide for livable communities.

Finding: The proposal will allow the City to be able to expand the UGB and then annex land that is part
of Sunshine Park, including both developed and undeveloped areas.

The Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) zone designation of the 49.92 acres involved in this application will be
rezoned to Public Reserve which will not permit for any residential or employment uses that might otherwise
have large and adverse impacts on the surrounding areas. This action will allow the UGB and City limits to
match the expanse of the City’s public park facility.

The process of a UGB expansion is itself a process that carries out Goal 14. This proposal has followed the
procedures pursuant to OAR 660-024. With this concurrent UGB expansion, comprehensive plan
amendment, annexation, and zone change, the City has acted in accordance with Goal 14.

The City finds that this proposal is consistent with Goal 14.

Goal 15: Willamette Greenway
Pursuant to OAR 660-024-0020(e), Goal 15 is not applicable.

Goals 16 to 18
Pursuant to OAR 660-024-0020(f), Goals 16 to 18 are not applicable.

Goal 19: Ocean Resources
Pursuant to OAR 660-024-0020(g), Goal 19 is not applicable.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 54 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Chapter 5 - Congistency with the Roseburg Uban
Area Comprehensive Plan Pdlicies

Citizen Involvement Element
The objective of Roseburg’s Citizen Involvement Program is to ensure that the citizens of the Roseburg
urban area have an opportunity to be involved in all phases of the planning process.

The Citizen Involvement Element of the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan does not have specified
goals or policies, however an overall framework for citizen involvement is established in accordance with
the Statewide Goal.

Finding: The City has taken steps to involve community members as much as possible in notifying and
allowing for participation in the review process. A more detailed finding demonstrating consistency with
this policy has been discussed in Chapter 4.

Population Element
To accommodate Roseburg’s anticipated population growth through the orderly provision of
essential facilities and services while promoting wise and efficient land use.

Population Policy #2: Concepts of urban development for cost effectiveness and energy
efficiency will be supported.

Finding: The City finds that the inclusion of the remaining portions of Sunshine Park into the UGB and city
limits is a cost effective and efficient way of providing urban development, including the development of
park facilities. The addition of this land into the City and UGB will allow for a cost effective and energy
efficient development of Sunshine Park with a new trail system that will accommodate Roseburg’s current
and projected population. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Population Policy #4: Resources necessary to provide adequate public services utilities and
facilities should be budgeted to meet the projected population.

Finding: As established in the Land Need section of Chapter 2 of this report, including the entirety of
Sunshine Park into the UGB and city limits will provide the amount of park land necessary to meet the
projected population. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Natural Resources Element
Goal 1. Provide a healthy and attractive environment for the urban area population.

Goal 2. Maintain the benefits associated with environmental resources in an urban setting.
Those resources include the land, clean air and water, tolerable noise levels, aggregate
resources, wildlife and wildlife habitat, and vegetation. Recommendations directed toward
these resources may differ depending upon whether they are located on urban, rural or
urbanizable lands.

The Natural Resources Element has 18 policies. The following policies are applicable to the requested
amendments:

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 55 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Natural Resources Policy #1: Future public capital improvements will be designed in
consideration of climatic circumstances that may create hazards, inconveniences, or
additional maintenance costs.

Finding: The City has taken careful consideration into what the future of this portion of Sunshine Park will
be. At this time, there is no development proposal in review, but the City plans to develop this portion of
Sunshine Park with a trails system. The trails system will provide for non-motorized passive and active
recreation at the park. Any future capital improvements proposed at or near the site will be designed in
consideration of climate circumstances. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Natural Resources Policy #6: The City and County shall jointly develop and adopt ordinances
and programs which carefully manage development on hillsides and in water bodies in order
to protect scenic quality, water quality, vegetation, and wildlife values of those areas.

Finding: The City has adopted a number of regulatory ordinances to protect natural resources, including
a Hillside Development Overlay to help ensure the stability of steep slopes and the protection of
environmental resources. Any future development of the park will be reviewed for consistency and
compliance with the applicable ordinances and codes. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with
the above policy.

Natural Resources Policy #8: Land form alterations proposed in areas with the following
conditions should show that design and construction techniques eliminate public harm, public
costs, and adverse effects to surrounding properties:

-Slopes exceeding 13 percent;

-Severe soil erosion potential;

-Land subject to slumping or sliding.

Finding: Areas on the hillside within Sunshine Park have a grade between 10% and 60%. Nominal
excavation is likely to be needed for the development of a trail network, however it is expected to be less
than the threshold to trigger a Site Review application. Any land form alterations proposed on these sloped
areas will follow the applicable development review and will be reviewed for compliance with all existing
codes and ordinances. A development application will adhere to any conditions of approval imposed at the
time of review. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Natural Resources Policy #10: The City shall cooperate with the Department of Environmental
Quality in developing and implementing ongoing plans and programs necessary to assure
compliance with adopted air quality standards, water quality standards and noise level
standards.

Finding: The City is not proposing to develop or implement any new programs to assure compliance with
adopted air quality standards, water quality standards, or noise level standards with this application. All
future development of this area brought into the UGB and city limits will be reviewed for compliance with
existing codes and ordinances. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Natural Resources Policy #12: Natural drainage courses, including major waterways, shall be
regulated to control alteration, excavation, filling, realignment, clearing and all other actions
that could affect their function or natural resource value.

Finding: All future development of the area brought into the UGB and city limits will be reviewed for
compliance with existing codes and ordinances. Coordination with the Department of State Lands (DSL) to
form an updated wetlands mitigation plan will likely be needed if new development were to affect any
wetlands on the site. The proposed plans for trails expansion on the remaining undeveloped acreage have
been designed to avoid the wetlands along the south boundary of the Sunshine Park property. This area is

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 56 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

to be avoided in future development projects as it provides an obvious and desirable buffer between the
parks, trails, and the industrial activity at the mill site just south of the parcel boundary. The City finds that
this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Natural Resources Policy #14.: Mature ground cover and trees, wildlife habitats and the
natural contours of identified significant stream banks shall be preserved. This shall be
accomplished with a setback of structural and any other physical development such as parking
lots, retaining walls, channel alterations, etc. from identified stream banks unless findings are
made, after consultation with the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife, that any such
activity:

a. Will not have a significant adverse effect on stream bank erosion, water temperature

and quality, or wildlife; or

b. Is required for flood control and actions are taken to mitigate such impacts as much

as Is possible; or,

c. Is not required for flood control and will include all actions as are necessary to

prevent or sufficiently mitigate any significant immediate or potential stream bank

erosion, adverse effect on water temperature and quality, or wildlife.

Finding: All future development of the area brought into the UGB and city limits will be reviewed for
compliance with existing codes and ordinances. No development activities are proposed with this
application. Development standards for setbacks, retaining walls, or channel operations will be reviewed
with the established review procedures of the City. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the
above policy.

Economic Element

To broaden, improve and diversify the economy of the Roseburg urban area while enhancing
the environment.

Finding: This proposal does not involve any commercial or industrial zoned lands, nor do plans intend any
inclusion of lands for that purpose in the future. This proposal does not hinder any activities related to
economic development. As a result, there are no applicable policies to address within this element.

Transportation Element

Note: CITY ORDINANCE NO. 3534, effective February 10%, 2020, approved a Comprehensive Plan
Amendment, which adopted by reference the Roseburg Transportation System Plan (TSP) into the
Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan. The TSP, with its goals, policies, and objectives, acts as the
Transportation Element.

Goal 1. Provide a comfortable, reliable, and accessible transportation system that ensures
safety and mobility for all members of the community.

Goal 2. Create an integrated multimodal transportation system that enhances community
livability.

Goal 3. Provide for a multimodal transportation system that enhances connectivity.

Goal 4. Advance regional sustainability by providing a transportation system that improves
economic vitality and facilitates the local and regional movement of people, goods, and
services.

Goal 5. Provide a sustainable transportation system through responsible stewardship of
financial and environmental resources.

Finding: This proposal does not involve any changes to the existing transportation network and
connectivity to the existing park. The existing park has been served by the existing transportation network
and has been operated as a park supported by that network for years. This proposal will not have an effect
on the transportation system that currently serves the park. Future development of the park will determine

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 57 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

what, if any, improvements to the transportation system are needed as a result of proposed development.
As a result, there are no applicable policies to address within this element. The City finds that this proposal
is consistent with the above goals.

Energy Conservation Element
To maximize the conservation and efficient utilization of both renewable and non-renewable
energy within the framework of sound land use and economic principles.

Energy Conservation Policy #2: The City shall incorporate into its land use ordinance
provisions which encourage new development to utilize density and location, in balance with
the requirements of other planning policies, in order to reduce the need to travel, increase
access to transit, and permit building configurations which increase the efficiency of space
heating in residences.

Energy Conservation Policy #4: As an energy conservation measure, the City will encourage
the infilling of vacant land.

Finding: The proposed UGB amendment does not hinder or otherwise interfere with the City’s current or
future actions to encourage the infilling of vacant land. The proposed expansion to include the park land
already used as a park will not change the energy consumption of the City. Any future development
proposals will be reviewed in accordance with development codes and ordinances. The City finds that this
proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Parks and Recreation Element
To provide a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of park and recreation facilities and
services which will satisfy the diverse needs of urban area residents and visitors.

Parks and Recreation Policy #1: The City shall establish guidelines to ensure a means of
acquiring needed park lands.

Finding: This proposal and UGB expansion will allow for the City to include the park land that is already
in use and operated by the City into its jurisdiction. No additional park land is being acquired through this
proposal. The City is gaining the ability to use the park land that it already has acquired and has been
consistently operating and maintaining in a manner consistent with the goals and objectives of the City’s
adopted comprehensive plan and the City Of Roseburg Comprehensive Parks Master Plan. The City finds
that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Parks and Recreation Policy #2: The City, in coordination with the Douglas County Parks
Department, shall formulate, adopt and implement a Park and Recreation Master Plan which
incorporates a methodology reflecting demand characteristics of the Roseburg urban area.
The Park and Recreation Master Plan will include:
a. The development of a complete inventory of park and recreation facilities and
current usage of these facilities, the development of local standards for use by the
City in determining the type and level of parks and facilities that are needed; the
development of demand effectiveness measurements, and the development of capital
improvements programming and other implementation strategies.
b. Indication of how much land is needed for each type of park (district, community,
neighborhood, etc.),; and indicate what types of activities should be provided in each
park (e.g.,, active recreational opportunities such as ball fields, tennis courts and
playgrounds versus passive recreational opportunities such as hiking trails).
c¢. Indication of how the resources of other local organizations and agencies can be
coordinated and maximized in order for each to provide the level and type of
recreational opportunities for which it is best suited.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 58 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

d. Indication of areas where the advance purchase of park land should occur in
anticipation of future demand.

Finding: The City has proposed this UGB expansion, comprehensive plan map amendment, annexation,
and zone change in accordance with the City Of Roseburg Comprehensive Parks Master Plan. The Master
Plan recommends enhancements to nearly every park in the system, ranging from minor upgrades to
equipment to complete redevelopment based on a new site plan. Projects recommended for Sunshine Park
include the development of additional trails as part of a trail network to provide safe and non-destructive
access through the natural area for walking, biking and other trail uses. This proposal will allow for the
development of such trails on the portions of Sunshine Park that will be brought into the city limits. The
City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Parks and Recreation Policy #3: The City shall continue to encourage and facilitate
cooperation and coordination with other appropriate agencies regarding the planning,
acquisition, development and use of parks and recreation facilities.

Finding: The City facilitated cooperation and coordination for the proposed development of trails within
Sunshine Park while the portion of the park was not within the City limits. During public hearings on the
development proposal, which ultimately led to a denial of the proposal, County Commissioners suggested
that the City should annex the property into the city limits for the proposed development. This proposal is
consistent with that suggestion. The City will continue to work with, cooperate and coordinate with other
appropriate agencies regarding the planning, acquisition, development and use of parks and recreation
facilities as applicable. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Parks and Recreation Policy #4: The development of park and recreation facilities shall
optimize existing and planned transportation facilities and services and shall allow for choice
in using alternative transportation modes.

Finding: This proposal is to expand the UGB and annex land into the City limits that is already being
operated and maintained as a park by the City of Roseburg. This proposal does not include any development
action. The existing and planned transportation facilities and services will continue to allow residents and
surrounding community members to have a choice in using alternative transportation modes. The City finds
that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Parks and Recreation Policy #5: The City shall take an active role in promoting both the public
and private recreation industry in the Roseburg urban area.

Finding: This proposal and the eventual development of trails within Sunshine Park demonstrates that the
City is taking an active role in promoting the public recreation industry in the Roseburg urban area. The
City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Parks and Recreation Policy #6.: The development of park and recreation facilities shall
consider the carrying capacity of the land, air, and water resources of the site. Park and
recreation development shall not exceed the carrying capacity of such resources.

Finding: No development is proposed with this proposal, and any future development of the park land
brought into the UGB and city limits will be reviewed for consistency with the adopted codes and ordinances
at that time. Future development of the areas brought in will be reviewed to determine that that
development will not exceed the carrying capacity of these resources. However, because the portion of
Sunshine Park being brought into the UGB and city limits is already being operated as a park, the City finds
that the carrying capacity of the land, air, and water resources of the site support the use of the land as a
park. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 59 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Parks and Recreation Policy #7: The City shall evaluate existing park and recreation facilities
for possible modification to accommodate the special needs of handicapped persons and
senior citizens. Future parks and recreation facilities shall be designed to accommodate the
special needs of these individuals.

Finding: As previously stated, no development is proposed with this proposal. However, the planned trails
extension will have portions of trails that accommodate the special needs of individuals, and existing ADA
features exist in the park. Future development of the park land brought into the UGB and city limits will be
reviewed for consistency and compliance with the adopted codes and ordinances at that time. The City
finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Historic Preservation Element
To identify, preserve and protect historic and cultural resources of the Roseburg urban area.

Finding: The proposed expansion does not include any lands with significant inventoried historic or cultural
resources. As a result, there are no applicable policies within this element.

Public Facilities and Services Element
To provide a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and services to serve
as a framework for community development.

Providing public facilities and services to the UGB expansion area and area of annexation have been
previously addressed in this report in Chapter 3 and Chapter 4. The City finds that this proposal is consistent
with this element.

Housing Element

To ensure the opportunity for, and the provision of, safe, affordable housing in sufficient
numbers, types, size and locations to meet the needs of all citizens in the Roseburg urban
area.

Finding: The proposed expansion does not involve any residentially zoned lands, nor do plans intend any
inclusion of lands for that purpose in the future. This proposal neither directly encourages nor hinders any
activities related to residential development. As a result, there are no applicable policies to address within
this element.

Land Use and Urbanization Element

Urban Growth Goal: To manage growth in the Roseburg urban area through cooperative
efforts of the City of Roseburg and Douglas County to insure the quality of life of present and
future residents of the area, and to contain urban development and preserve adjacent
resource lands by:

a. Establishing and periodically reviewing an urban growth boundary to identify and
separate urbanizable land from rural land while insuring sufficient amounts of
urbanizable land to accommodate the population needs for the year 2000.

b. Planning and developing a timely, orderly, and efficient arrangement of public facilities
and services to serve as a framework for urban development.

Schools and Parks Development Goal: To insure that the coordination of planning for school
and park locations and siting is consistent with the Roseburg Urban Area Comprehensive Plan.
Public and Semi-Public Buildings and Lands Development Goal: To provide for an arrangement
of public and semi-public facilities and services which complement private development and
meet the needs of Roseburg area residents.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 60 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Resource Area and Hazardous Area Development Goal: To conserve open space, protect
natural and scenic resources, and to protect life and property from natural disasters and
hazards.

Urban Growth Policy #2: Changes to the urban growth boundary, including either additions
or deletions of land, shall be based upon consideration of the following factors:

a. Demonstrated need to accommodate Ilong-range urban population growth
requirements consistent with State land use goals.
Need for housing, employment opportunities and livability.
Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services.
Maximum efficiency of land uses within and on the fringe of the existing urban area.
Environmental, energy, economic, and social consequences.
Retention of agricultural land.
Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural activities.
Changes to the urban growth boundary shall also be in accordance with the procedures and
requirements as set forth in Statewide Land Use Planning Goal (Goal 2) for goal exceptions.
Urban Growth Policy #3: The conversion of urbanizable land within the urban growth
boundary to urban uses shall be guided by a growth management program which provides for
the orderly and economically efficient extension of public facilities and services, while taking
into consideration the need for an adequate supply of land to meet future housing
requirements. The growth management program shall encourage the development of vacant
lands that have urban services before extension of services beyond presently served areas.

QM0 QA0T

Finding: The City and County do not have a formal growth management program, but rather use an urban
growth management agreement in order to guide development within the UGB. The City finds that the
proposed UGB expansion and annexation into the city limits considers both the orderly and economically
efficient extension of public facilities and services and the need for an adequate land supply for future park
development. The proposal does not encourage the extension of services before the development of vacant
lands with urban services. The City finds that this criterion is met and supported through the analysis of
Chapter 4. Public facilities and services are either available nearby or already available to the proposed
expansion area. The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Urban Growth Policy #9: An opportunity shall be provided for all parties to the urban growth
management agreement to comment on all proposals for annexation of property to the City.

Finding: This proposal includes the annexation of property into the City. A joint City and County Planning
Commission public hearing will be the first public hearing to consider this proposal. At this public hearing
and all subsequent public hearings on the matter there will be opportunities to comment on this proposal.
The City finds that this proposal is consistent with the above policy.

Schools and Parks Development Policy #1: Planning for school and park locations and siting
should be done in close coordination with ongoing comprehensive planning taking into
consideration the neighborhoods they are to serve, any physical limitations, the impact upon
the transportation system, projected residential growth patterns and pedestrian access.

Finding: The Comprehensive Parks Master Plan classifies Sunshine Park as a Community Park, which are
intended to attract people from the entire community, rather than a single neighborhood. However,
considering the impacts on the immediate neighborhood is still important. The Sunshine Park site is located
on the east edge of Roseburg, which is a fairly remote location from most of the city’s residential areas.
However, the site is located on an arterial road that connects directly into the urban core allowing
convenient access for cars and public transit. Future improvements for bicycle and pedestrian access are
currently being reviewed through the Diamond Lake Boulevard/OR 138E Design Concept Plan.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 61 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

There are a number of multifamily apartment complexes that have recently been constructed in the mixed
use areas on the Diamond Lake corridor, including: Oak Springs Apartments (89 units), Ash Springs
Apartments (105 units), and Sunshine Apartments (144 units) which is located directly across the street.
This park site expansion will provide added nearby facilities to serve a growing population in this area of
the City.

Conclusion

The proposed UGB expansion and annexation of 49.92 acres of land will meet nearly all the established
park land need. This proposal includes the criteria and findings for a UGB expansion of 49.92 acres, a
comprehensive plan map amendment application, an application for annexation into the City of Roseburg,
and a zone change application to establish the appropriate city zoning to the site. Upon approval of these

concurrent applications, the land chosen for expansion will be entirely inside and within the jurisdiction of
the City of Roseburg.

Based on the materials submitted herein, the application is consistent with the applicable provisions of the
City of Roseburg Development Code, the City of Roseburg Comprehensive Plan, Oregon Administrative
Rules, and Goal 14. The evidence in the record is substantial and supports approval of these concurrent
applications. The Applicant respectfully requests approval from the City of Roseburg Planning Commission,
City Council, and Douglas County Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners for this application.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 62 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Appendix 1: Copy of Emergency Access Easerment
|
; Douglas County Official Records 2020-017967

Daniel J. Loomis, County Clerk
Wil soro0

41 20023

‘ 00!233 2020001796700
10/16/2020 03:34:45 PM

EASE-EASE  Cnt=1 S$tn=43 KGSTUTZM
$10.00 $11.00 $60.00 $10.00

DOUGLAS COUNTY CLERK, OREGON

CERTIFICATE PAGE

IAW ORS 205.180

DO NOT REMOVE THIS PAGE
FROM ORIGINAL DOCUMENT

THIS PAGE MUST BE INCLUDED
IF DOCUMENT IS RE-RECORDED

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 63 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 64 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

EXHIBIT “A”

25" WIDE ACCESS EASEMENT FOR EMERGENCY USE ONLY

Beginning at a point on the southern boundary of that land described in Instrument No. 2002-0173 of the
Deed Records of Douglas County, Oregon that bears N §1° 15' 27" W 27.64 feet from the 5/8" iron rod
marking the Southwest corner of Parcel 1, Land Partition 2008-0065 of the Survey Records of Douglas
County, Oregon; thence N 1° 14' 58" E 12.91 feet; thence N 1° 21' 21" E 30.60 feet; thence

N 0°09' 36" W 28.27 feet; thence N 5° 42" 51" W 30.75 feet; thence N 21° 20' 12" W 26.34 feet; thence
N 49°15'37" W 27.73 feet; thence N 66° 26' 44" W 33.91 feet; thence N 79° 34' 47" W 32.83 feet;
thence N 83° 07" 56" W 61.59 feet; thence N 80° 00' 54" W 30.35 feet; thence N 72° 48' 12" W 27.98
feet; thence N 65° 12' 29" W 34.39 feet; thence N 58° 03" 18" W 32.76 feet; thence N 57° 02' 35" W
37.67 feet; thence N 60° 43' 53" W 26.67 feet; thence N 70° 10" 24" W 21.50 feet; thence

N 83° 54' 42" W 25.84 feet; thence S 84° 47' 35" W 24.60 feet; thence S 78° 56' 32" W 33.81 feet; thence
SB1°56'17" W 26.68 feet; thence N 78° 01' 59" W 23.68 feet; thence N 51° 53' 05" W 21.08 feet; thence
N 28° 23" 12" W 22.65 feet; thence N 12° 16' 34" W 19.31 feet; thence N 6° 50" 48" W 27.82 feet; thence
N 10° 50" 36" W 84.54 feet; thence N 127 44' 12" W 45.65 feet; thence N 11° 53' 51" W 32.01 feet;
thence N 12° 09' 09" W 35.64 feet; thence N 9° 24' 15" W 37.82 feet; thence N 8° 15' 58" W 26.83 feet;
thence N 1° 00' 38" E 25.86 feet; thence N 73° 00' 00" W 16.90 feet and there terminating.

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 65 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 66 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Appendix 2 Legal Description of Expansion Area

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 67 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Appendix 3 Goal 5 Wetlands Delineations

NOMPAREIL

*
a5
y =

-
7
=

S
ag T35
| sNDaRceuzv-

o
2

o e,

1(5‘ 3

M

Dadaon Burte

From Official Road Map of Douglas County, Oregon

approximate scale: 1 inch = S miles

SITE LOCATION MAP
Land And Water Environmental Services, Inc.  [Date: 01/26/2000 Fmigdsl‘fm
525 S.E. Main St Design:LAWESI oy
Roseburg, OR 97470 Drawn: Project #;
Tif: (541) 672-039% Fax 672-7170 Checked: JLB RSBG-09

Page 68 of 74

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

ROSEBURG EAST QUADRANGLE
OREGON—DOUGLAS CO.
7.5 MINUTE SERIES (TOPOGRAPHIC})

[236 |:l:
—— 3315¢
=

Taken From U.S. Geclogical Survey Map, Reseburg East, Oregon
appraximate scale: 1 inch = 2000 feet

SITE LOCATION MAP

Land And Water Environmental Services, inc. Date: 09/09/99 | Project Name:
| 525 S.E. Maln St Design:LAWES| | DELINEATION
Roseburg, OR 97470 Drawn: Project#
TIF. (541) 6720383/ Faye 672-7170 Checked: JLB RSBG-09

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024

Page 69 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

MAP

WETLAND
DELINEATION

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 70 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Appendix 4 Roseburg Are Departrment Conmrents on
Hre Prevention

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 71 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Appendix 3. Central Douglas Are & Rescue Conmrents
on Hre Prevention

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 72 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Appendix 6: ODOT Conments Bl

From: HOROWITZ Micah <Micah.HOROWITZ@odot.cregon.gov> On Behalf Of ODOT Region 3 Development Review
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 9:59 AM

To: Andy Blondell <ablondell@roseburgor.gov>

Cc: BAKER Michael <Michael. BAKER@odot.oregon.gov>; BROOKS Aaron G <Aaron.G.BROOKS@odot.oregon.gov>; EPPS
Mark <Mark.EPPS@odot.oregon.gov>; MILLER Justine <Justine.MILLER@odot.oregon.gov>; WANG Wei

<Wei. WANG@odot.oregon.gov>

Subject: RE: Sunshine Park Trails

Hi Andy,

Qur previous comments still stand, we do not have any concerns with the proposed addition of mountain bike
trails at sunshine park and zone change from Ag to Public Reserve.

Best regards,
Micah

Micah Horowitz | Development Review Planner
ODOT Region 3 | Southwest Oregon (Coos, Curry, Douglas, Jackson & Josephine Counties)
c: 541.603.8431 |e: micah.horowitz@odot.oregon.gov

From: BAKER Michael <Michael. BAKER@odot.oregon.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 18, 2022 11:55 AM

To: Nik Ramstad <NRamstad@cityofroseburg.org>
Subject: RE: Hwy 138 Travel Capacity Question

Nik,
We won't have any problem accommodating increased use at the park. Here is a nice simple gis link to a
lot of ODOT data that may help in the future. 2021 traffic volumes at Sunshine Road were
approximately 9,500 AADT.

https://gis.odot.state.or.us/transgis/

Mike Baker

ODOT Planning and Program Manager, Region 3
3500 NW Stewart Parkway

Roseburg, OR 97470

Phone: 541-957-3658

Fax: 541-672-6148

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 73 of 74



PUBLIC HEARINGS A
ATTACHMENT NO. 3

Photographs of Sunshine Park

Sunshine Park UGB Expansion Report - November 2024 Page 74 of 74



INFORMATIONAL A
02/10/2025

TENTATIVE FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA

Unscheduled

UTRAN Presentation

VA Director Presentation

Council Goals Adoption

Five Year Capital Improvement Plan Update

City Manager Evaluation Process Presentation (Work Study)
City Manager Evaluation Process Adoption

UCC Land Transfer

Fireworks Risk Assessment

o Parking Discussion Continued

February 24, 2025 - 6:15 P.M.

Planning Commission Interviews

February 24, 2025

Mayor Reports

A. 2023 GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellences in Annual Comprehensive
Financial Reporting (ACFR) and 2023 GFOA Award for Outstanding Achievement in
Popular Annual Financial Reporting (PAFR)

Special Presentations

A. Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

B. Quarterly Report Ending December 31, 2024

C. 2025 — 2026 Budget Calendar

Consent Agenda

A. February 10, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Ordinances

A. Ordinance No. 3608 — Sunshine Park, Second Reading

Resolutions

A. Resolution No. 2025-003 — Safe Routes to School — Douglas Avenue Improvements
Department Items

A. Water Transmission Main Replacement — Master Contract Award

B. Brown Park Expansion — Play Equipment Purchase

Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

March 10, 2025

Mayor Reports

A. American Red Cross Month Proclamation

B. Process for Requesting Items on a Future Council Agenda
Consent Agenda

A. February 24, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Department Items

A. Off-Street Parking Fund Discussion

Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

March 24, 2025

Mayor Reports

A. National Library Week Proclamation
Consent Agenda

A. March 10, 2025 Meeting Minutes



INFORMATIONAL A
02/10/2025

Department Items

A. Stewart Park Tennis/Pickle Ball Bid Award
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

April 14, 2025

Mayor Reports

A. Recognition of City Volunteers and Volunteer Recognition Month Proclamation

B. Oregon Arbor Month Proclamation

Consent Agenda

A. March 24, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Department Items

A. Inmate Housing Intergovernmental Agreement Extension

B. Intergovernmental Agreement — Douglas County Communications Services and Radio
Usage Agreement

Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

April 28, 2025

Mayor Reports

A. Historic Preservation Month Proclamation
B. Thrive Umpqua Day Proclamation
Consent Agenda

A. April 14, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Department Items

A. Water System Master Plan Contract Award
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

B. Finance Quarterly Report

C. Municipal Court Quarterly Report

May 12, 2025

Mayor Reports
A. EMS Week Proclamation
B. National Public Works Proclamation
Consent Agenda
A. April 28, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Resolutions
A. Annual Fee Adjustment
I. Resolution No.: General Fees
il. Resolution No.: Water Related Fees
Department Items
A. DMO Contract Award
Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

June 9, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. May 12, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Public Hearings

A. Resolution No. _ 2025-26 Budget Adoption
Department Items

A. 2025 PMP Bid Award



Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

INFORMATIONAL A
02/10/2025

June 23, 2025

Mayor Reports

A. Parks and Recreation Month Proclamation
Consent Agenda

A. June 9, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Department Items

A. Slurry Seal Bid Award

Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

July 14, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. June 23, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Public Hearings

A. PICM Model Ordinance No. , First Reading
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

July 28, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. July 14, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Ordinances

A. PICM Model Ordinance No. , Second Reading
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

B. Municipal Court Quarterly Report

August 11, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. July 28, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

August 25, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. August 11, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Executive Session

A. ORS192.660(2)(i) — City Manager Evaluation
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

B. Finance Quarterly Report

September 8, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. August 25, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas



INFORMATIONAL A
02/10/2025

September 22, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. September 8, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

October 13, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. September 22, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Department Items

A. 2025 Oregon Library Statistical Report
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

October 27, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. October 13, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

November 10, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. October 27, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Executive Session

A. ORS192.660(2)(i) — Municipal Court Judge Evaluation

Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
B. Municipal Court Quarterly Report
C. Finance Quarterly Report

December 8, 2025

Mayor Reports

Consent Agenda

A. November 10, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Informational

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas




	02-10-2025 Agenda
	030A - AIS - Council Resignation - Kylee Rummel, Ward 1, Position 1
	060A - 01-27-2025 City Council Meeting Minutes
	070A - Ordinance No. 3608 - An Ordinance Amending the Roseburg Urban Growth Boundary (UGB), Annexing Property, Amending the Compreh
	Informational A - Future Tentative Council Agendas



